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Statement of Financial Position

Particulars 31.03.2078 32.03.2079 31.03.2080 31.03.2080 31.03.2081
Restated Audited Audited Restated Audited
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 31,645,508 22,298,687 5,887,656 5887,656 5,669,852
Intangible Assets
SCA Assets Under Development 5,893,543,561 6,461,309,290 7,605,891,934 8,062,245451 9,022,281,575
Other Intangible Assets 7424 - - - -
Advances for SCA Assets Under Development 338,002,562 374,543,680 362,722,351 362,722,351 358,870,084
Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets 6,836,278 2611278 2,602,500 2,602,500 2,702,500
Other Assets - - - - -
Total Non Current Assets 6,270,035,333 | 6,860,762,934 | 7,977,104,441 | 8,433,457,958 | 9,389,524,011
Current Assets
Inventories - - -
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables - - - - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 3,670,908 5421989 6,289,391 6,289,391 6,341,076
Other Financial Assets 1,549,705 - - - -
Other Assets 1,955,012 8,154,439 8,369,912 8,369.912 9,847,802
Current Tax Assets (Net) - - - - -
Total Current Assets 7,175,625 13,576,428 14,659,303 14,659,303 16,188,878
Total Assets 6,277,210,958 | 6,874,339,362 | 7,991,763,744 | 8,448,117,260 | 9,405,712,889
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 4,113,993,262 4,637,712,343 5322,583,872 5,322,583,872 6,872,382,842
Other Financial Liabilities 44,562,499 45,500,203 58,052,879 58,052,879 63,111,938
Lease Liability - 4,117,163 3452331 3452331 2,654,639
Other Liabilities - 124,264,589 154,710,260 154,710,260 156,406,760
Total Non Current Liabilities 4,158,555,760 | 4,811,594,299 | 5,538,799,342 | 5,538,799,342 | 7,094,556,179
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 309,315,698 434.402,324 087,948,745 687,948,745 133,450,459
Trade Payables - - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 122,867,751 159,467,608 309,670,615 309,670,615 245,316,962
Total Current Liabilities 432,183,449 593,869,932 997,619,360 997,619,360 378,767,421
Total Liabilities 4,590,739,209 | 5,405,464,231 | 6,536,418,702 | 6,536,418,702 | 7,473,323,600
Equity
Equity Share Capital 1,800,000,000 1,800,000,000 1,800,000,000 1,800,000,000 1,800,000,000
Retained Earnings and Reserves (113,528 251) (331,124,869) (344,654.957) 111,698,559 132,389,289
Total Equity 1,086,471,749 | 1,468,875,131 | 1,455,345,043 | 1,911,698,559 | 1,932,389,289
Total Liabilities and Equity 6,277,210,958 | 6,874,339,362 | 7,991,763,744 | 8,448,117,260 | 9,405,712,889
Net Worth per Share 93.69 81.60 80.85 106.21 107.35
Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment 381,589,353 446,803,795 353,022,251 353,022,251 329,159,752
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2079-80 2080-81
Restated Audited Audited Restated Audited
Income
Revenue from Operations
Sales Revenue - - - - -
Construction Revenue as per IFRIC-12 597,175,234 567,765,729 1,144,582,645 1,213,257,604 960,036,125
Cost of Sales
Generation Expenses - - - - -
Construction Cost as per IFRIC-12 597,175,234 567,765,729 1,144,582,645 1,144,582,645 905,694,457
Gross Profit - - - 68,674,959 54,341,667
Other Income - - - - 15,725,000
Administrative Expenses 6,964,771 9,023,264 13,089,452 13,089,452 22,039,166
Damaged Items Written Off - 206,637,853 - - 26,980,930
Profit from Operations (6,964,771 (215,661,117) (13,089,452) 55,585,507 21,046,572
Finance Income - - - - -
Finance Cost - 507,757 440,637 440,637 355,842
Profit before Tax (6,964,771)|  (216,168,874)|  (13,530,089) 55,144,870 20,690,730
Income Tax Expenses - - - - -
Current Tax - - - - -
Deferred Tax - - - - -
Profit for the Year (6,964,771)|  (216,168,874) (13,530,089) 55,144,870 20,690,730
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that are Reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss - - - - -
Items that are Not Reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss - - - - -
Tax Relating to OCI items - - - - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income - - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income (6,964,771 (216,168,874) (13,530,089) 55,144,870 20,690,730
Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS (Annualised) (0.44) (12.01) (0.75) 3.06 .15
Diluted EPS (Annualised) (0.44) (12.01) (0.75) 3.06 1.15
Statement of Cash Flow
Particulars 2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 2079-80 2080-81
Restated Audited Audited Restated Audited
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax (6,964,771) (216,168,874) (13,530,089) 55,144,870 20,690,730
Adjustment for:
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 848,819 13,372,103 16,131,117 1,046,212 1,118,480
Fixec Assets Damaged written off - 6,454,915 - - -
SCA Assets Under Development Damaged written - 200,182,938 - - 26,980,930
Finance Cost on Lease - 507,757 440,637 440,637 355,842
IFRIC-12 Margin - - - (68,674,959) (54,341,667)
Changes in Operating Capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets 773,750 5,774,705 8,778 8,778 (100,000)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets 947,023 (6,199,427) (215474) (215474) (1,477,389)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 16,319,604 37,537,562 162,755,683 162,755,683 (59,294,594)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities - 124,264,589 30,445,671 30,445,671 1,696,500
Payment of Bonus - - - - -
Payment of Income Tax - - - - -
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 11,924,425 165,726,267 196,036,323 180,951,418 (64,371,669)
Cash Flow from Investing Activities
(Addition) of Property, Plant and Equipment and (42,000) (7,522,357) - - (1,609,757)
Intangible Assets
Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment and - - - - -
Intangible Assets
(Addition) of SCA Assets Under Development (592,106,277) (767,668,753) (1,144,302,731) (1,129,217,826) (931,966,306)
Disposal of SCA Assets Under Development - - - - -
(Addition) of Advances for SCA Assets Under (36,622,079) (36,541,118) 11,821,329 11,821,329 3,852,267
Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (628,770,356) (811,732,227) | (1,132,481,402)| (1,117,396,497) (929,723,796)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Issue of Share Capital 349,640,000 - - - -
Payment of Dividend - - - - -
Increase/(Decrease) in Lease Liabilities - (540,910) (664,833) (664,833) (797,692)
Finance Cost on Lease - (507,757) (440,637) (440,637) (355,842)
Increase/(Decrease) in Loans and Borrowings 267,805,430 648,805,708 938,417,950 938,417,950 995,300,684
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 617,445,430 647,757,041 937,312,480 937,312,480 994,147,150
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 599,499 1,751,081 867,402 867,402 51,685
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of 3,071,409 3,670,908 5,421,989 5,421,989 6,289,391
the period
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the 3,670,908 5,421,989 6,289,391 6,289,391 6,341,076
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Note: The figures for F'Y 2077-78 have been restated in the Audited Financial Statements for
FY 2078-79 and the figures for FY 2079-80 have been restated in the Audited Financial
Statements for FY 2080-81.
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Statement of Financial Position — FY 2078-79

Rs. In 000
Particulars 32.03.2079 32.03.2079 | Increase/(Decre %
Budget Actual ase)
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2910 22,299 19,388 666%
Intangible Assets
SCA Assets Under Development - 6,461,309 6,461,309 -
Other Intangible Assets 7,309,127 - (7,309,127) -100%
Advances for SCA Assets Under Development 101,130 374,544 273,414 270%
Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets - 2,611 2,611 -
Other Assets - - - -
Total Non Current Assets 7,413,167 6,860,763 (552,404) -7%
Current Assets
Inventories 10,000 - (10,000) -100%
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables - - - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 10,826 5422 (5,404) -50%
Other Financial Assets - - - -
Other Assets - 8,154 8,154 -
Current Tax Assets (Net) - - - -
Total Current Assets 20,826 13,576 (7,249) -35%
Total Assets 7,433,993 6,874,339 (559,654) -8%
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 5,318,724 4637712 (681,012) -13%
Other Financial Liabilities - 45,500 45,500 -
Lease Liability - 4,117 4117 -
Other Liabilities - 124,265 124,265 -
Total Non Current Liabilities 5,318,724 4,811,594 (507,130) -10%
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 63,791 434,402 370,611 581%
Trade Payables - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 152,578 159,468 6,890 5%
Total Current Liabilities 216,368 593,870 377,501 174%
Total Liabilities 5,535,093 5,405,464 (129,629) 2%
Equity
Equity Share Capital 1,800,000 1,800,000 - 0%
Retained Earnings and Reserves 98,900 (331,125) (430,025) -435%
Total Equity 1,898,900 1,468,875 (430,025) -23%
Total Liabilities and Equity 7,433,993 6,874,339 (559,654) -8%
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income — FY 2078-79

Rs. In 000
Particulars 2078-79 2078-79 Increase/(Decre %
Budget Actual ase)

Income
Revenue from Operations

Sales Revenue 1,093,559 - (1,093,559) -100%

Construction Revenue as per IFRIC-12 - 567,766 567,766
Cost of Sales

Generation Expenses 27871 ] - (27871) -100%

Construction Cost as per IFRIC-12 - 567,766 567,766 -
Gross Profit 1,065,688 - (1,065,688) -100%
Other Income - - - -
Administrative Expenses 366,693 1 9,023 (357,669 -98%
Damaged Items Written Off - 206,638 200,638 -
Profit from Operations 698,995 (215,661) (914,657) -131%
Finance Income - - - -
Finance Cost 570,119 508 (569,612) -100%
Profit before Tax 128,876 (216,169) (345,045) -268%
Income Tax Expenses - - -

Current Tax

Deferred Tax - - - -
Profit for the Year 128,876 (216,169) (345,045) -268%
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that are Reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss
Items that are Not Reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss
Tax Relating to OCI items
Total Other Comprehensive Income - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income 128,876 (216,169) (345,045) -268%
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Statement of Financial Position — FY 2079-80
Rs. In 000
Particulars 31.03.2080 31.03.2080 | Increase/(Decre %
Budget Actual ase)

Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2234 5,888 3,054 164%
Intangible Assets

SCA Assets Under Development - 7,605,892 7,605,892 -

Other Intangible Assets 7,025,525 - (7,025,525) -100%
Advances for SCA Assets Under Development 103,825 362,722 258,897 249%
Financial Assets

Other Financial Assets - 2,603 2,603 -
Other Assets - - - -
Total Non Current Assets 7,131,584 7,977,104 845,520 12%
Current Assets
Inventories 10,000 - (10,000) -100%
Financial Assets

Trade Receivables - - - -

Cash and Cash Equivalent 307,168 6,289 (300,879) -98%

Other Financial Assets - - - -
Other Assets - 8,370 8,370 -
Current Tax Assets (Net) - - - -
Total Current Assets 317,168 14,659 (302,509) -95%
Total Assets 7,448,752 7,991,764 543,012 7%
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Loans and Borrowings 5,302,724 5,322,584 19,859 0%

Other Financial Liabilities - 58,053 58,053 -
Lease Liability - 3452 3452 -
Other Liabilities - 154,710 154,710 -
Total Non Current Liabilities 5,302,724 5,538,799 236,075 4%
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Loans and Borrowings 65,678 687,949 622,271 947%

Trade Payables - - - -

Other Financial Liabilities 23,166 309,671 286,505 1237%
Total Current Liabilities 88,843 997,619 908,776 1023%
Total Liabilities 5,391,568 6,536,419 1,144,851 21%
Equity
Equity Share Capital 1,800,000 1,800,000 - 0%
Retained Earnings and Reserves 257,184 (344.655) (601,839) -234%
Total Equity 2,057,184 1,455,345 (601,839) -29%
Total Liabilities and Equity 7,448,752 7,991,764 543,012 7%
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income — FY 2079-80

Rs. In '000
Particulars 2079-80 2079-80 Increase/(Decre %
Budget Actual ase)

Income
Revenue from Operations

Sales Revenue 1,125,903 - (1,125,903) -100%

Construction Revenue as per IFRIC-12 - 1,144,583 1,144,583 -
Cost of Sales

Generation Expenses 28,518 ) - (28,518) -100%

Construction Cost as per IFRIC-12 - 1,144,583 1,144,583 -
Gross Profit 1,097,385 - (1,097,385) -100%
Other Income - - - -
Administrative Expenses 373,988 ) 13,089 (360,898) -97%
Profit from Operations 723,397 (13,089) (736,487) -102%
Finance Income - - - -
Finance Cost 565,113 441 (564,672) -100%
Profit before Tax 158,284 (13,530) (171,814) -109%
Income Tax Expenses - - - -

Current Tax - - -

Deferred Tax - - - -
Profit for the Year 158,284 (13,530) (171,814) -109%
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that are Reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss - - -
Items that are Not Reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss - - -
Tax Relating to OCI items - - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income 158,284 (13,530) (171,814) -109%
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Kshitij Sharma & Associates ot waiepus sl

E-mail: ksassociates.ca@gmail.com

Firm Registration No.: 819
Chartered Accountants Firm Reglstrati

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders
of
Greenlife Hydropower Limited

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Greenlife Hydropower Limited (the “Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 32" Ashad 2079, statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, statement of cash flows, statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effect of matters described in Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at 32" Ashad 2079, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion

SCA Assets under Development includes a sum of Rs. 431.42 million accounted for based on interim
payment certificates from the contractor. Subsequent to the reporting date, tax invoices of Rs.
301.99 million were obtained on Ashad 2080 and local tax regulation of GoN has been complied
with on invoice amount subsequently. Advance for SCA Assets Under Development includes a sum
of Rs. 117.65 million which has remained outstanding for more than three years on the reporting
date. The recoverability of the amounts was uncertain and possible impairment allowances have
not been provided for.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN’s Handbook of
The Code of Ethics For Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As disclosed in Note 3.12, the Company has not provided or accounted for employee benefits as
required by Labour Act and Contribution Based Social Security Act. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Write off of Damaged Items by Flood
(Note 4.14 of Financial Statements)

Certain assets of the company including | Our audit approach included, but were not limited to
SCA Assets under Development suffered | followings;

heavy damages due to flood at the source
river. The amount of loss accounted for
write off amounted to Rs. 206.64 million,

» Obtained copy of initial loss report prepared and
acquainted with the possible losses that might

arise.
which is a significant amount in relation | 5,  optained and analyzed the detailed loss report
to statement of profit or loss of the and acquainted ourselves with possible losses to
company. critical equipment.

» Obtained final technical report on loss provided
by the consultant engineer and evaluated the
amount mentioned as damaged items along with
amounts.

» Cross checked the amounts mentioned in loss
with existing data on books of the accounts of the
company.

» Confirmed that the technical report and loss
amount was approved by Board of Directors.

» Checked the insurance claim and inquired on the
status of claim assessment.

» Satisfied ourselves on the adequacy of the
amount presented for write off.

» Other incidental matters in relation to damages
were reviewed.

We were satisfied with the accounting of loss

included in the financial statements.

Use of IFRIC 12 for Presentation of Financial Statements
(Note 4.2, 4.11 and 4.12 of Financial Statements)

Company has presented the work in | Our approach included, but was not restricted to the

progress assets as SCA assets under | following;

development in line with IFRIC-12.

Company has also presented

» Reviewed the correctness and adequacy of
presentation of assets in line with IFRIC-12.

consFructlon revenue and cost as » Reviewed the correctness of the amount
required by IFRIC-12 and related other presented as construction revenue and

standards in the statement of profit or construction cost.

loss. The presentation of assets and | » Reviewed management judgment for margin on
income/expenses has material impact on construction period expenses.

preparation and presentation of financial » Other incidental matters in relation to damages
statements were reviewed.

We were satisfied with the use of IFRIC 12 on
presentation of financial statements.

Other Information

Company’s management is responsible for preparation of other information for the reporting
period. The other information may comprise inform_atLuﬁ&ncludad 4tn the Management report,
Report of the Board of Directors, report of Mangaging Diregtor but doe Nat include the financial
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statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon. In
connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If based on-the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard. :

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with NFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operation, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

== -2

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtauped.—whe{he @ material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast sngmfté?n/douh the entity’s ability to
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continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial statements. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, the financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063. To the best of our
information and according to explanations given to us and from our examination of the books of
accounts of the Company necessary for the purpose of our audit to the extent for the scope of our
audit, we have not come across cases where the Board of Directors or any employees of the
Company have acted contrary to the provisions of law relating to the accounts or committed any
misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the Company relating to the accounts in the
Company. adoa,

Godawari-09, Lalitpur, Nepal.
Date: 17 Aswin2080
UDIN: 231004CA01004NX6cC
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Statement of Financial Position
As at 32 Ashad 2079

UHAETSH ETggMITER [afHds

Particulars

Note

32.03.2079

31.03.2078

Non Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets
SCA Assets Under Development
Other Intangible Assets
Advance for SCA Assets Under Development
Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets
Other Assets

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4
4.5

22,298,687.12

6,461,309,289.50

374,543,679.73

2,611,278.08

31,645,508.42

5,893,543,560.74
7,424.06
338,002,561.94

6,836,278.08

Total Non Current Assets

6,860,762,934.43

6,270,035,333.24

Current Assets
Inventories
Financial Assets
Trade Receivable
Cash and Cash Equivalent
Other Financial Assets
Other Assets
Current Tax Assets (net)

4.6
4.4
45

5,421,989.12

8,154,438.64

3,670,908.06
1,549,704.87
1,955,011.95

Total Current Assets

13,576,427.76

7,175,624.88

Total Assets

6,874,339,362.19

6,277,210,958.12

Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Loans and Borrowings 4.7 4,637,712,343.35 4,113,993,261.68
Other Financial Liabilities 4.8 45,500,203.15 44,562,498.50
Lease Liability 4,117,163.27 -
Other Liabilities 124,264,589.22 -
Total Non Current Liabilities 4,811,594,298.99 4,158,555,760.18
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 4.7 434,402,324.26 309,315,698.31
Trade Payables - -
Other Financial Liabilities 4.8 159,467,607.72 122,867,750.85
Total Current Liabilities 593,869,931.98 432,183,449.16
Total Liabilities 5,405,464,230.97 4,590,739,209.34
Equity
Equity Share Capital 49 1,800,000,000.00 1,800,000,000.00
Retained Earnings and Reserves 4.10 {331,124,868.78) {113,528,251.22)
Total Equity 1,468,875,131.22 1,686,471,748.78
Total Liabilities and Equity 6,874,339,362.19 6,277,210,958.12
Net Worth per Share 81.60 93.69
Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment 4.15 446,803,794.83 381,589,353.40
Company Informgtion and Signi t Accounting
Policies EIM : 13 ~
{ !
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive income
For the year ended on 32 Ashad 2079

Particulars Note

2078-79

2077-78

Income

Revenue from Operations
Sales Revenue 411
Construction Revenue as per IFRIC-12 411

Cost of Sales
Generation Expenses 4.12
Construction Cost as per IFRIC-12 412

567,765,728.76

567,765,728.76

597,175,233.53

597,175,233.53

Gross Profit

Other Income
Administrative Expenses 4.13
Damaged Items Written Off 4.14

9,023,264.39
206,637,852.75

6,964,771.38

Profit from Operation

(215,661,117.13)

(6,964,771.38)

Finance Income
Finance Cost

507,756.98

Profit before Tax

(216,168,874.11)

(6,964,771.38)

Income Tax Expenses
Current Tax
Deferred Tax

Profit for the Year

(216,168,874.11)

(6,964,771.38)

Other Comprehensive Income

Items That are Reclassified to Statement of Profit
or Loss

Items That are Not Reclassified to Statement of
Profit or Loss

Tax Relating to OCl items

Total Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

(216,168,874.11)

(6,964,771.38)

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS

(12.01)

(0.44)

Diluted EPS

(12.01)

(0.44)

Company Information and Significant Accounting
Policies
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.

Statement of Cash Flow

For the year ended on 32 Ashad 2079

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit Before Tax {216,168,874.11) (6,964,771.38)
Adjustment for: .
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 13,372,102.86 848,819.28
Fixec Assets Damaged written off 6,454,914.80 -
SCA Assets Under Development Damaged written off 200,182,937.95 -
Finance Cost on Lease 507,756.98

Changes in Operating Capital

{Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets 5,774,704.87 773,750.00
(Increase}/Decrease in Other Assets (6,199,426.69) 947,023.05
increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 37,537,561.52 16,319,604.32
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 124,264,589.22 -
Payment of bonus

Payment of income tax

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 165,726,267.40 11,924,425.27
Cash Flow from Investing Activities

{Addition) of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible (7,522,356.93) (41,999.99)
Assets

Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible -

Assets

{Addition) of SCA Assets Under Development (767,668,752.60) {592,106,277.01)
Disposal of SCA Assets Under Development -

{Addition) of Advance for SCA Assets Under Development (36,541,117.79) (36,622,079.27)
Net Cash flows from Investing Activities (811,732,227.32) (628,770,356.27)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Issue of Share Capital - 349,640,000.00
Payment of Dividend

increase/(Decrease) in Lease Liabilities (540,909.66)

Finance Cost on Lease (507,756.98)

Increase/(Decrease) in loan and borrowing 648,805,707.62 267,805,429.98
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 647,757,040.98 617,445,429.98
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,751,081.06 599,498.98
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period 3,670,908.06 3,071,409.08
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period 5,421,989.12 3,670,908.06
Represented by:

Cash in Hand - -
Balance with Bank 5,421,989.12 3,670,908.06
Total 5,421,989.12 3,670,908.06
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended on 32 Ashad 2079

Particulars Equity Share Capital |Retained Earnings |Reserve Total

As at 31 Ashad 2077 1,450,360,000.00 1,450,360,000.00
Restatement {96,974,921.34) (96,974,921.34)
Restated balance at 01 Shrawan 2077 1,450,360,000.00 (96,974,921.34) - 1,353,385,078.66
Profit for the year (6,964,771.38) (6,964,771.38)
Other Comprehensive Income -
Issue of Shares 349,640,000.00 349,640,000.00
Cost of Share Issue (9,588,558.50) (9,588,558.50)
Dividend Paid -
Balance at 31 Ashad 2078 1,800,000,000.00 (113,528,251.22) - 1,686,471,748.78
Adjustment of first time accounting of

lease (1,427,743.45) (1,427,743.45)
Restated balance at 01 Shrawan 2078 1,800,000,000.00 {114,955,994.67) - 1,685,044,005.33
Profit for the year (216,168,874.11) (216,168,874.11)
Other Comprehensive Income -
Issue of Shares -
Cost of Share Issue -
Dividend Paid -
Balance at 32 Ashad 2079 1,800,000,000.00 {331,124,868.78) - 1,468,875,131.22

As per our attached repo
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Financial Year: 2078-79
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1: Corporate Information

Greenlife Hydropower Limited (the Company) is a limited liability company domiciled in Nepal and
established under the Companies Act, 2063 on Ashwin 04, 2066 with the principal objective to generate
and sell hydro-power electricity. Its registered office is located at Kathmandu Metropolitan City-28,

- Kathmandu District of Nepal. The company obtained power generation license of Khanikhola 1 Hydro-
electricity Project with installed capacity of 25 MW from Department of Electricity Development
(DoED} on Baisakh 28, 2068, which was subsequently raised to 40 MW as per the amendment to the
power generation license issued by Department of Electricity Development (DoED) on Ashadh 10, 2071.
The company has entered into Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA)
on Ashwin 24, 2067. The project is Run of River (ROR) type. The project is under construction and is yet
to commence its commercial operation. The revised required commercial operation date (RCOD) of the
project is 9th Bhadra 2080. The Company has already started the process for obtaining the extension of
the RCOD.

The accompanied financial statements are authorized for issued by the Board of Directors of the
Company in its meeting held on 4th Ashwin, 2080. The Board of Directors acknowledge the
responsibility of preparation of financial statements. These financial statements are presented to
annual general meeting of shareholders for approval.

Note 2 : Basis of Preparation and Measurement
2.1  Statement of Compliance
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS)
except otherwise stated hereinafter.

The financial statements include Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flow, Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes to
Financial Statements including comparatives for previous year.

2.2 Basis of Preparation
The financial statements are prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are
applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements except restatement of
profit or loss in line with NFRS. The details are presented separately in note 5.3 and 5.4.

Statement of Financial Position is prepared segregating current and non current items in reverse order
of liquidity, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income is prepared on functional
basis, Statement of Cash Flow is prepared using Indirect Method and on cash basis.

2.3 Functional and Reporting Currency
The functional and reporting currency is Nepalese Rupees.

2.4  Basis of Measurement ;
The items of financial statements are measured at historical cost except explicitly mentioned ',

otherwise.
AV .
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Financial Year: 2078-79
Notes to Financial Statements

2.5  Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standard
{NFRS} requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires
management to exercise judgments in the process of applying the company’s accounting policies. The

© company makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future events. Estimates and
judgments are continuously evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the
future, actual results may differ from estimates and assumptions. Major estimates includes:

Useful life of property, plant and equipment:

Management reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment at least once
a year. Such life is dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the assets and also their
likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and
operating costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information
available to the Management.

impairment of property plant and equipment and SCA Assets under Development

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discounted
estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices,
market demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors.
Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact the
carrying value of assets.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with tax
concessions available to the company. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements are prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company.

3 Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied since
previous periods except otherwise stated. The deviation from previous practices have been disclosed in
the relevant points/paragraphs.

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets f
Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE) and Other Intangible Assets are recorded at cost. Cost includes -
the purchase price and directly attributable costs. PPE are presented at cost less accumulated
depreciation in the financial statements. Leasehold improvements have been included in furniture and ',

fixtures.
’
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Financial Year: 2078-79
Notes to Financial Statements

Depreciation
Freehold 1and is not depreciated. Depreciation on all other assets are provided so as to write-off the
carrying value over the life of the assets.

Depreciation is calculated under the Straight Line Method. The estimated useful life are as follows:

Computer, Accessories and Office Equipments 7 years
Furniture, Fixture and Fittings 10 years
Vehicles 15 years
Other Site Assets 6 years
Amortization

Amortization on other intangible assets (except SCA Assets) are done based on useful life, if available,
or on ten years using straight line basis.

Impairment

Impairment test of PPE and other intangible assets is done on annual basis and if there exists indicators
that such assets are impaired, then the carrying value of fixed assets is adjusted and the resultant
impairment is accounted as expenses.

3.2 SCA Assets Under Development
IFRIC 12 — Service Concession Arrangements (SCA) applies to public-to-private service concession
arrangements if:
(a) The grantor controls or regulates what services the operator must provide with the infrastructure,
to whom it must provide them, and at what prices: and
(b) The grantor controls through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise any significant residual
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.

Company has determined that IFRIC -12 is applicable to the company. The Company manages
concession arrangements which include power supply from its hydro power plant. The Company
maintains and services the infrastructure during the concession period. These concession arrangements
set out rights and obligations related to the infrastructure and the services to be provided. The right to
consideration gives rise to an intangible asset and accordingly, the intangible asset models is applied.

Revenue from the service concession arrangements under intangible asset model is recognized in
accordance with the terms of the power purchase agreement as and when the power is supplied.
During construction phase, revenue is required to be accounted in line with revenue from contract with
customers which requires accounting of increase in SCA assets as cost and such cost plus reasonable
. margin on construction as revenue. However, due to lack of harmonization on the margin on
construction contract, company has presented the amount equal to cost as revenue during
construction phase. This also holds true as company is only managing the project and does not sell it,

rather transfer it to the grantor on Re. 1 at the end of PPA period. /
/o
.l|I =
Administrative costs and indirect overheads are not included as part of SCA assets as these are ngt—

directly attributable to any of the assets. | =
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Financial Year: 2078-79
Notes to Financial Statements

Capitalization
When the SCA Assets under development are available for commercial production, then on such date,
the SCA assets under development will be transferred to SCA assets.

" Amortization
SCA assets are amortized over the period of concession, which is generally the period of PPA. The
amortization is carried out using the straight line method.

Impairment

Impairment test of SCA assets is done on annual basis and if there exists indicators that such assets are
impaired, then the carrying value of assets is adjusted and the resultant impairment is accounted as
expenses.

De-recognition

SCA assets is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
future use or disposal or when the contractual rights to such assets expire. Contractual rights expire on
the conclusion of the PPA period.

3.3 Financial Assets
Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contract embodying the
related financial instruments.
Financial assets are classified and measured at either amortized cost or fair value.
Financial assets at amortized cost:
if the business objective of the asset is both to hold the asset and receive periodic specified cash flows
(principal or interest or both), then such assets are classified as financial assets at amortized cost.

At initial measurement, financial assets classified as measured at amortized cost are measured at their
cost plus or minus the transaction cost. Subsequent to the initial recognition, financial assets at
amortized cost are measured using effective interest rate. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial
instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Financial assets at fair value:
If any of the condition of financial assets does not meet any one of the criteria of measurement at
amortized cost, then such assets are measured at fair value.

At initial measurement, financial assets classified as measured at fair value are measured at their cost.

*Transaction cost, if any, are included as expenses in statement of profit or loss. Subsequent to the
initial recognition, financial assets at fair value are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
accounted in statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets
Impairment of financial assets are measured using expected credit loss model on simplied approach
basis. impairment, if any, is charged as expenses to statement of profit or loss.

De-recognition

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition
under NFRS 9. On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amounts measured at the date of de-recognition and the consideration received is recognized in
statement of profit or loss.
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Financial Year: 2078-79
Notes to Financial Statements

3.4 Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and cash equivalent are financial assets which comprises cash, highly liquid investments and
deposits with financial institutions with maturity period of three months or less and that are subject to
insignificant changes in value over the period.

3.5 Prepayments
Amounts paid for upcoming fiscal years are accounted as prepayments.

3.6  Deposits
The amount deposited with the authorities for availing facilities are accounted and presented as
deposits provided they are refundable when the facilities are no longer used by the company. These
are carried at undiscounted value as impact of discounting is immaterial.

3.7 Inventories
Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of inventories include cost of purchase and expenses
incurred to bring it to its current location and condition. Subsequently, inventories are measured at
cost or net realizable value, whichever is less.

Inventories are valued using the weighted average cost method. There is no inventory balance as at 32
Asadh 2079 that need to be disciosed.

3.8  Financial Liabilities
Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contract embodying the
related financial instruments.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at cost, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is
significant. Initial charges paid for term loan was paid long ago and thus the impact of effective interest
rate for current period will be immaterial. Accordingly, contrary to requirement of NFRS 9, effective
interest rate on loan is not computed.

For financial liabilities maturing in short period, effective interest rate is not used as the impact is
immaterial.

De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or madification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition aof
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

Present Value Accounting of Retention Liability )
Retention liability is measured at the transaction amount without adjustment of present value due tg
uncertainity on the estimated payment dates of such amounts. This is not in line with NFRS.

g
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Financial Year: 2078-79

Notes to Financial Statements

3.9
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Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received. Cost of
issue are directly adjusted to equity.

Revenue

Sale of electricity : Company has the policy to recognize income from sale of electricity on accruai basis
and based on the invoice issued to Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA), subject to confirmation from NEA.
This is the core revenue, that is yet to arise in the company.

Revenue during construction phase : Revenue during construction phase is accounted as stated in note
3.2,

Expenses
Expenses are accounted under accrual basis. Expenses of construction phase are accounted as stated in
note 3.2,

Employee Benefits

Salary and allowances are accounted on accrual basis. Employee benefit liabilities like accumulated
leave, gratuity, insurance, etc. are not provided/accounted. Related provision of Labour Act and
Contribution Based Social Security Act on this matter shall be considered for future application.

Income Taxes
Accounting for income tax is done based on the taxable profit for the year determined under the
provisions of the income Tax Act 2058.

Deferred tax is accounted whenever there arises a temporary difference on the tax base and the
carrying amount of the assets/liabilities. As the company will benefit from tax exemptions and
concessions for a long period of time, deferred tax assets is not computed on carry forward losses.

Lease

Lease taken (company as lessee) is accounted as per NFRS 16 with accounting of right to use assets and
lease liability. Right to use assets is computed by discounting the future lease payments using
incremental borrowing rate of the company at lease inception date. Right to use assets is included as
part of property, plant and equipment and is depreciated over the lease period. Interest charge on
lease liability is included as finance cost. Additional information on Lease is provided in Note 5.8.

Risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s business activities expose it to a variety of risks which may adversely impact the
completion of project. The Company's Board and senior management has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management. The Company's risk management
practices are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

The Board.of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are
summarized below:-
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Financial Year: 2078-79
Notes to Financial Statements

a. Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Company. As the company is under construction phase, its counterparty default
risk does not exist, apart from advances provided during construction works to contractors or
consultants. Company monitors these parties closely so as to ensure that company obtains required
benefits or works from those parties.

b. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. Company has been availing bank financing in the form of term loan and other loans
as required for meeting its obligations till date, including injection of required equity from promoters
and shareholders. This risk will come to play in big effect once the commercial production is started.

c. Market risk

Currency risk

The Company is subject to the risk that changes in foreign currency values impact the Company’s
imports of machineries and equipment for hydropower plant construction and installation. The
exposure of foreign currency has been provided in note 4.15. The company, till date, has not taken any
measures to mitigate the risk of fluctuations in foreign currency.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company’s long-term and short-term debt obligations. Since, the interest rate risk is influenced by
market forces, company has little role to play for minimizing this risk.

Market liquidity

The operation of company is dependent on the disbursement of loans by financing institutions.
However, the shortage of liquidity in market itself has hampered the progress of the company as
company has been unable to receive required funds on required time, thereby resulting in delay in
execution of the works.

3.16 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company. The Company manages its capital so
as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to the shareholders.
The capital structure of the Company is based on management's judgement of the appropriate balance
of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital
in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and
" the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The Company’s aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient
capital management. The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a ¥ Pl
focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future Cﬂ i ;
development and growth of its business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain,’ . /
or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. '
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Financial Year: 2078-79
Notes to Financial Statements

3.17 Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
" either in the principal market or in the absence of principal market, the most advantageous market.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as foliows:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 ~— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Notes to financial statements

(o
5,

As at 32 Ashad 2079
SCA Assets Under Development Note 4.2
In line with note 3.2, SCA assets under development include the following: i
Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Project Land 19,905,877.00 19,905,877.00
Civil Construction 1,231,865,158.64 1,161,216,070.68
Contingency/Miscellaneous Expenses 163,911,587.75 152,412,612.34
Site Development 39,203,164.32 39,203,164.32
Financial Cost 3,044,097,170.18 2,519,290,106.32
infrastructure Development 620,267,827.02 604,982,646.57
Plant & Machinery 543,691,242.60 684,292,473.33
Owners Cost 120,761,421.32 120,761,421.32
Project Set-up and Management Cost 122,613,360.02 110,545,576.35
General Items 48,653,083.86 41,536,294.55
Metal Works 260,420,350.54 258,055,351.83
Transmission Line and Switchyard 187,145,555.08 122,568,474.96
Environment Mitigation 58,773,491.17 58,773,491.17
Total 6,461,309,289.50 5,893,543,560.74
Advance for SCA Assets Under Development Note 4.3
The below mentioned Advances for SCA Assets Under Development are settled on
construction/delivery of SCA Assets.
Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Civil Construction 39,641,619.34 76,516,681.03
Contingency/Miscellaneous 16,375,147.61 15,258,383.28
General Items 168,750.00 168,750.00
infrastructure Development 56,513,127.61 21,837,297.34
Land 595,620.00 895,620.00
Metal Works 50,285,664.39 46,495,662.69
Plant & Machinery 112,063,596.12 80,304,588.00
Transmission Line and Switchyard 94,659,348.25 93,501,646.48
Vehicle 100,000.00 100,000.00
Project Set-up & Management Cost 3,391,810.02 2,174,936.73
Site Development 748,996.39 748,996.39
Total 374,543,679.73 338,002,561.94
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Notes to financial statements
As at 32 Ashad 2079

Other Financial Assets Note 4.4
In line with note 3.3 and note 3.6, other financial assets include the following:

Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Non-Current

Deposits

Department of Electricity Development (DoED) - 1,225,000.00
Nepal Electricity Authority (for PPA) 2,550,000.00 2,550,000.00
Transmission Line License - 3,000,000.00
Other Deposits 61,278.08 61,278.08
Total Non-Current 2,611,278.08 6,836,278.08
Current

Deposits

Bank Margin for HRT Pipe Import - 1,549,704.87
Total Current - 1,549,704.87
Total Other Financial Assets 2,611,278.08 8,385,982.95
Other Assets Note 4.5
In line with note 3.5, other assets include the following:

Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Non-Current

Total Non-Current - -
Current

Prepayment

Insurance of Power Plant & Employees 7,521,113.64 841,124.94
RTS Fees 375,000.00 350,000.00
Bank Guarantee Commission 22,500.00 65,965.51
Advances

Office Rent 39,325.00 -
Advance for Share Alotment - 501,421.50
Other Advances 196,500.00 196,500.00
Total Current 8,154,438.64 1,955,011.95
Total Other Assets 8,154,438.64 1,955,011.95
Cash and Cash Equivalent Note 4.6
In line with note 3.4, cash and cash equivalent include the following:

Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078

Cash at bank 5,421,989.12 3,670,908.06
Cash in hand - -
Total 5,421,989.12 3,670,908.06
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Notes to financial statements

As at 32 Ashad 2079

Loans and Borrowing Note 4.7
In line with note 3.8, loans and borrowing include the following: .
Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Non Current
Long Term Loan 4,637,712,343.35 4,113,993,261.68
Total Non-Current 4,637,712,343.35 4,113,993,261.68
Current
Loan from Others - 122,573,711.22
Loans from Banks/Financial Institutions '

Bridge Gap Loan 379,869,309.01 132,766,840.09

Demand Loan 41,871,747.00 41,875,147.00

Other Loan 12,661,268.25 12,100,000.00
Total Current 434,402,324.26 309,315,698.31
Total Loan and Borrowing 5,072,114,667.61 4,423,308,959.99
Long Term Loan has been obtained via consortium arrangement from following banks:
Name of Bank/Financial Institution 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. 201,944,896.28 181,213,092.71
Century Commercial Bank Ltd. 409,129,669.89 362,078,367.81
Citizens Bank international Ltd. 837,172,948.33 744,276,018.92
Civil Bank Ltd. 504,520,583.39 452,190,583.39
Jyoti Bikas Bank Ltd. 367,282,648.07 328,557,346.66
Nabil Bank Ltd. 740,981,502.62 666,041,684.33
Nepal Bank Ltd. 399,751,054.16 358,420,922.35
Prime Commercial Bank Ltd. 894,045,012.67 767,790,857.33
Siddhartha Bank Ltd. 282,884,027.94 253,424,388.18
Total 4,637,712,343.35 4,113,993,261.68

Additional information on loans

a. Company has entered into a consortium loan agreement with Prime Commercial Bank Ltd. as the lead
financial institution. The approved term loan limit is NRs. 4,176,878,490 for the 25 MW Project with the
interest rate of 11.50 % at the end of the reporting period. The loan is availed against the entire present
and future current and fixed assets of the company, power purchase agreement, joint and personal
guarantee of 8 promoters of Rs. 5,267.497 million for each individual, as well as power generation license, /
pledge of all shares of guarantors in the company, project guarantee, corporate guarantee, etc. as detailed =
in the Supplementary Facilities Agreement dated April 5, 2021. The interest on the term loan shall beé
capitalized during the construction period or Commercial Operation Date. The loan is repayable over a
period of 13 years after completion of construction period in 52 gtarterly ballooning installments. The
Company has already initiated the process to increase the approved term loan limit to the extent and
above of total pricipal disbursed and capitalized interest till date. ’

Hydro Power Lid.
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Notes to financial statements
As at 32 Ashad 2079

b. Interest on the Consortium loan from financial institutions till the current period amounting to Rs.
67,606,805.16 (accrued & due interest) and Bridge Gap Loan amounting to Rs. 521,106,703.97 have been
capitalised and included in the principal amounts of the respective participant banks above.

c. The Financial Closure for the additional 15 MW has been completed and the approved term loan limit for
the same is Rs. 840,000,000 at 13% interest rate. This loan has not yet been disbursed to the Company

as of 32nd Asadh 2079. Company has availed Bridge Gap Loan of Rs. 12.67 crores related to the 15MW
Project.

d. The loans from banks have been taken long back and the service charge on loan was not material to loan
amount, thus effective interest rate of loan equals its actual interest rate.

Other Financial Liabilities Note 4.8
In line with note 3.8, other financial liabilities include the following:

Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078

Non Current

Retention Payable 45,500,203.15 44,562,498.50
Total Non-Current 45,500,203.15 44,562,498.50
Current

Agency Fee Payable 35,940,270.87 25,817,773.78
Consultancy & Other Payable 32,382,522.57 32,495,522.57
Interest Payable 7,573,591.42 7,573,591.42
Main Contractor Payable 33,263,138.46 14,567,209.41
Other Parties Payable 31,660,794.24 23,406,247.46
Salary Payable 15,303,408.77 18,122,051.57
TDS Payable 3,186,581.41 832,921.30
House Rent TDS Payable 157,299.98 52,433.34
Total Current 159,467,607.72 122,867,750.85
Total Other Financial Liabilities 204,967,810.87 167,430,249.35
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Notes to financial statements

As at 32 Ashad 2079
Equity Share Capital Note 4.9
In line with note 3.9, equity share capital include the following: )
Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Authorized Capital
25,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NRs. 100 each 2,500,000,000.00 2,500,000,000.00
Issued Capital
18,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NRs. 100 each 1,800,000,000.00 1,800,000,000.00
Paid Up Capital
18,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NRs. 100 each 1,800,000,000.00 1,800,000,000.00
Total 1,800,000,000.00 1,800,000,000.00
Reconciliation of no. of shares
Particulars 32,03.2079 31.03.2078
Opening 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00
Addition - -
Closing 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00
Retained Earnings and Reserves Note 4.10
Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Retained Earnings (331,124,868.78) (113,528,251.22)
Reserves )
Total {331,124,868.78) (113,528,251.22)
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Notes to financial statements
For the year ended on 32 Ashad 2079

Revenue from Operation ’ Note 4.11
In line with note 3.10, revenue include the following:
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

Sales Revenue

Consfruction Revenue as per IFRIC-12 567,765,728.76 597,175,233.53
Total 567,765,728.76 597,175,233.53
Cost of Sales Note 4.12
In line with note 3.11 and note 3.2, cost of sales include the following:

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Generation Expenses - -
Construction Cost as per IFRIC-12 567,765,728.76 597,175,233.53
Total 567,765,728.76 597,175,233.53
Administrative Expenses Note 4.13
In line with note 3.11, 3.12 and 3.14, administrative expenses include the following:

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Advertisement Expenses 124,733.86 57,268.40
AGM Expenses 195,615.72 -
Audit Fee Expenses 226,000.00 226,000.00
Bank Charges 38,091.45 432,182.52
Board Meeting Expenses 211,000.00 -
Communication Expenses 29,394.99 15,444.24
Consultancy Fees 1,162,450.00 135,000.00
Depreciation Expenses 1,488,077.18 848,819.28
ine and Penalty Expenses 27,900.00 1,473,221.72
Fuel Expenses 122,270.01 43,644.00
Local Tax Expenses - 78,500.00
Meeting Expenses 33,000.00 57,000.00
Membership Fee Expenses - 25,000.00
Office Expenses 84,836.00 3,181.00
Other Expenses 267,856.31 58,464.38
Postage and Courier Expenses 8,500.00 -
Printing and Stationery Expenses 51,226.50 13,644.00
Rating Fees 226,000.00 -
Renewal Expenses 4,512.36 161,487.64
Rent Expenses 0.00 1,004,972.20
Repair and Maintenance Expenses 45,426.00 -
RTS Expenses 725,000.00 350,000.00
Salary Expenses 3,560,000.00 665,000.00
Share Related Expenses 300,000.00 1,235,000.00
Utilities Expenses 91,374.00 80,942.00
Total 9,023,264.39 6,964,771.38
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Notes to financial statements
For the year ended on 32 Ashad 2079

Damaged ltems Written Off ; Note 4.14
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Fixec Assets Damaged written off
Ropeway 2,762,081.40 -
Micro Hydro Power House 3,692,833.39 -
Sub-Total 6,454,914.80 -
SCA Assets Under Development Damaged written
off
Eiectromechanical Goods 69,407,432.65 -
Transformer Goods 68,589,698.25 -
Switchyard Goods 27,181,843.38 -
Switchyard Construction Cost 35,003,963.67 -
Sub-Total 200,182,937.95 -
Total 206,637,852.75 -

The amounts written off are os per the Technical Assessment Report dated 22nd Poush 2078 and
cpproved at the Board Meeting held on 14th Chaitra 2079 Please refer Note No. 5.7 for odditional
information.
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Notes to financial statements

For the year ended on 32 Ashad 2079

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments - Note 4.15
Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Capital commitment under Letter of Credit 190,381,445.76 136,217,394.49
Capital Commitment to Contractor 208,507,957.07 166,463,468.90
Contingent Liabilities 47,914,392.00 78,908,490.00
Total 446,803,794.83 381,589,353.40
Capital commitment {Letter of Credit) 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Electromechanical Equipment* USD 1,102,000.00 USD 1,102,000.00 .

132 kV Equipment (PH Switchyard & Singati

Substation). INR 17,850,000.00

AAC Conductors for Transmission Line INR 12,873,837.50

Explosives INR 2,731,261.00

*Faulty Electro-Mechanical Equipment Goods have been supplied by Hunan Allonward Hydro-Generating
Equipment Co. Ltd. Company has followed up with the Party for the Replacement of the same and upon
inability to obtain replacement of the same, Company has imported the goods and assigned the
installation work to another Contractor for the timely completion of the Project. Company is in the
processing of filing a case against Hunan Allonward Hydro-Generating Equipment Co. Ltd. for breach of
Contract and Cancelling the LC and stopping the balance LC Payment to the Party.

Contingent Liabilities 32.03,2079 31.03.2078

Bank Guarantee provided to NEA for RCOD

extension 24,000,000.00 24,000,000.00
Bank Guarantee for Exim Code 300,000.00 300,000.00
Guarantee issued on behalf of Aravali Infrapower

Limited to NEA to execute the Singati-Lamosangu

Transmission Line 23,614,392.00 23,614,392.00
Dry Port Customs Office, Sirsiya, Birgunj for

Customs Clearance of HRT pipes 30,994,098.00
Total 47,914,392.00 78,908,490.00

ife
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Note 5: Additional Information

5.1

5.2
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Proposed Dividend

Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 32 Ashad 2079

There is no any proposed dividend of the company.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities of the company are as follows:

As at 32.03.2079

Particulars

Carrying Amount

Fair Value Hierarchy

Fair Value

Financial assets

Other financial assets 2,611,278.08 |Level 3 2,611,278.08
Trade receivable - {lLevel 3 -
Cash and cash equivalent 5,421,989.12 |Level 1 5,421,989.12
Total financial assets 8,033,267.20 8,033,267.20
Financial liabilities

Loans and borrowings 5,072,114,667.61 |Level 3 5,072,114,667.61
Other financial liabilities 204,967,810.87 |Level 3 204,967,810.87
Trade payable - |Levell -
Total 5,277,082,478.48 5,277,082,478.48
As at 31.03.2078

Particulars Carrying Amount  [Fair Value Hierarchy |Fair Value

Financial assets

Other financial assets 8,385,982.95 |Level 3 8,385,982.95
Trade receivable - |level 3 -
Cash and cash equivalent 3,670,908.06 |Level 1 3,670,908.06
Total financial assets 12,056,891.01 12,056,891.01
Financial liabilities

Loans and borrowings 4,423,308,959.99 [Level 3 4,423,308,959.99
Other financial liabilities 167,430,249.35 |Level 3 167,430,249.35
Trade payable - |levell -
Total 4,590,739,209.34 4,590,739,209.34

Restatement and Regrouping

The statement of profit or loss of previous year has been restated with inclusion of administrative costs.
The cumulative administrative costs has been included under retained earnings by way of restatement of
opening retained earnings of previous year. Cost of equity share issue has been included in retained
earnings which was previously included as deduction from equity share capital. Accordingly, change has
been noted in SCA Assets under Development also.
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 32 Ashad 2079
Note 5: Additional Information

Restatement of statement of profit or loss of 2077-78

UHAETSH ETggMITER [afHds

Previous year
Heading audited figure Restated figure Difference
Revenue from operation - 597,175,233.53 597,175,233.53
Cost of Sales - 597,175,233.53 597,175,233.53
Gross profit - - -
Administrative expenses - 6,964,771.38 6,964,771.38
Net profit - (6,964,771.38) (6,964,771.38)
Restatement of retained earnings till 2077-78

Previous year

Heading audited figure Restated figlre Difference
Retained earnings at 01.04.2077* - (96,974,921.34) (96,974,921.34)
Cost of Share Issue included in
Retained Earnings - (9,588,558.50) (9,588,558.50)
Profit/(loss) for 2077-78 - (6,964,771.38) (6,964,771.38)
Net changes in retained earnings - (113,528,251.22) | (113,528,251.22)
*Transfer from SCA assets under development (92,174,699.28)
*Cost of equity share issue transferred from equity share capital {4,800,222.06)
Total change (96,974,921.34)
Restatement of SCA assets under development

Previous year
Heading audited figure Restated ﬁgure Difference
SCA Assets under Development 6,001,796,619.01 5,893,543,560.74 (108,253,058.27)
Net changes in retained earnings 6,001,796,619.01 5,893,543,560.74 (108,253,058.27)
Restatement to retained earnings and statement of profit or loss (99,139,470.66)
Regrouping of SCA Assets under development to PPE (27,850,620.61)
Regrouping of Advance to PPE 150,000.00
Regrouping of project land to SCA Assets under Development 18,587,033.00
Total Change (108,253,058.27)
Restatement of Equity Share Capital

Previous year
Particulars audited figure Restated figure Difference
As at 01.04.2077 1,445,559,777.94 1,450,360,000.00 4,800,222.06
As at 31.03.2078 1,785,611,219.44 1,800,000,000.00 14,388,780.56
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 32 Ashad 2079
Note 5: Additional Information

5.4

Major Regrouping of Previous Year Figures
Regrouping of previous year figures are done for better presentation of financial statements.-

£
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Non Current Assets Audited figures Restated Figure Difference
Property Plant and Equipment 1 22,381,920.81 31,645,508.42 9,263,587.61
Intangible Assets - -
SCA Assets Under Development 2| 6,001,796,619.01 5,893,543,560.74 (108,253,058.27)
Other Intangible Assets 7,424.06 7,424.06 -
Advance for SCA Assets Under 3
Development 338,002,561.94 '338,002,561.94
Financial Assets - -
Other Financial Assets 4 6,836,278.08 6,836,278.08
Other Assets - -
Total Non Current Assets 6,024,185,963.88 6,270,035,333.24 245,849,369.36
Current Assets
Inventories - -
Financial Assets - -
Trade Receivable - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 3,670,908.06 3,670,908.06 -
Other Financial Assets 4 8,385,982.95 1,549,704.87 (6,836,278.08)
Other Assets 5 340,107,573.89 1,955,011.95 (338,152,561.94)
Current Tax Assets (net) - -
Total Current Assets 352,164,464.90 7,175,624.88 (344,988,840.02)
Total Assets 6,376,350,428.78 6,277,210,958.12 (99,139,470.66)
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 4,113,993,261.68 4,113,993,261.68 -
Other Financial Liabilities 44,562,498.50 44,562,498.50 -
Total Non Current Liabilities 4,158,555,760.18 4,158,555,760.18 -
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 309,315,698.31 309,315,698.31 -
.Trade Payables - -
Other Financial Liabilities 122,867,750.85 122,867,750.85 -
Other Liabilities - N
Total Current Liabilities 432,183,449.16 432,183,449.16 -
Total Liabilities 4,590,739,209.34 4,590,739,209.34 -
Equity =
Equity Share Capital 6| 1,785,611,219.44 1,800,000,000.00 14,388,780.56 _:
Retained Earnings and Reserves 7 - (113,528,251.22) | (113,528,251.22}}
Total Equity 1,785,611,219.44 1,686,471,748.78 (99,139,470.66)
Total Equity and Liabilities 6,376,350,428.78 6,277,210,958.12 (99,139,470.6E)
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 32 Ashad 2079
Note 5: Additional Information

1. Land regrouped from PPE to SCA assets under development. Other Site Assets regrouped from SCA
assets under development and Capital Advances to PPE.

2. Refer statement of restatement in note 5.3.

3. Capital Advances have been regrouped under Advance for SCA Assets Under Development.

4. Non-current segregation of deposit carried out.

S. Capital Advance transferred to Advance for SCA Assets Under Development. Generator cost included in
Capital Advances transferred to PPE.

6. Refer statement of restatement in note 5.3.

7. Refer statement of restatement in note 5.3.

5.5 Works Accounted under SCA Assets under Development based on Running Bills
Of total amount under SCA assets under development, a sum of Rs. 431,418,325.22 has been accounted
based on running bills of the contractor certified by company. Tax invoices have not been received by the
Company for such amount. Related tax amounts amounting to Rs. 32,766,622.97 have not been booked
for the same. Subsequent to the reporting date, tax invoices amounting to Rs. 301,989,918.29 have been
obtained on Asadh 2080.

5.6 Legal Cases
Company has obtained a Stay Order in Company's favour relating to one litigation concerning the Electro
Mechanical Equipment, which is still pending.

5.7 Flood and Insurance Claim

Flood at Hanapu Khola caused damage to the Ropeway, Micro Hydro Powerhouse, Electromechanical
Goods, Transformer, Switchyard Equipment and Area. The company filed claim for damages with Nepal
Insurance Co. Ltd. Amounting to Rs. 8 crores. Till the date of approval of financial statements by Board,
claim amount has not been received.

Company has written off the damaged assets from SCA Assets under Development and PPE based on
Technical Report of Consultant dated 22nd Poush 2078 and approved by Board on 14th Chaitra 2079. The
claim amount will be booked in income upon receipt and new works will be capitalized after execution of

works.
5.8 Lease
The future minimum lease payments under the lease is as follows:
Period 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Within a year 1,105,469.44 1,048,666.67
One year to five years 4,220,009.44 5,325,478.89
After five years - -
l.'-":ra = AS@DO/

C)
®
[T

Company has applied NFRS -16 Leases for the first time. As per NFRS 16 para C2, the date of initj
application is the beginning of the annual reporting period in which an entity first applies this Standa‘rg_E
s

Accordingly, current fiscal year is the initial application date of this standard. In line with para CS th}_.
company has applied the standard retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the
Standard recognized at the date of initial application. In such scenario, Company shall not be required
restate comparative information. Instead, the Company shall recognize the cumulative effect of initially
applying this Standard as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings.
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Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 32 Ashad 2079
Note 5: Additional Information

5.9 Related Party Disclosure
Related parties comprises of Key Management Personnel of the company. There are no other related
parties.

Key Management Personnel:
i. Board of Directors:

Name Position

Yangchen Doma Lama Chairperson

Bhusan Thapa Director

Tenzin Jampe Lama Director*

Tseten WaLgyaI K. Lama Director

Gobinda Paudel Director-appointed w.e.f 21.10.2078
Ritu Gurung Director-appointed w.e.f 21.10.2078
Dharmendra Agrawal Director-retired w.e.f 21.10.2078
Kesang Dikee Lama Managing Director* (w.e.f 21.10.2078)

*Kesang Dikee Lama replaced Tenzin Jampe Lama as Managing Director after conclusion of AGM of the
company. Mr. Lama was paid Rs. 1,575,000 as remuneration of Managing Director tili Magh 2078. Ms.
Lama was paid Rs. 1,000,000 as remuneration of Managing Director from Falgun 2078 onwards.

Directors (except Directors appointed from Public Shareholders) of the company have provided personal
guarantee for availing credit facility to the company.

Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the board meetings, as per the decision of the AGM held on
21st Magh 2078. Meeting fee is Rs. 10,000 (Gross) per meeting per member. Total board meeting
expenses paid to Directors during the year is Rs. 211,000. Travel and daily allowances are paid at the
approved rates of the company during official travel.

The following directors are employed on salary basis as per the decision of annual general meeting of the
company held on 21 Magh 2078. The salary and benefits paid to such directors during the period are:

Tenzin Jampe Lama NRs. 2,700,000 (including remuneration paid as Managing Director)
Bhushan Thapa NRs. 1,000,000 (effective from 1 Falgun 2078)

The outstanding balance of payables to Directors are as follows:

Name of Director Salary Payable Other Payable Total

Tenzin Jampe Lama 6,114,541.60 798,484.64 6,913,026.24
Bhusan Thapa 1,995,000.04 1,995,000.04
Dharmendra Agrawal* 588,373.99 588,373.99
Yangchen Doma Lama 32,861,402.56 32,861,402.56
Kesang Dikee Lama 637,295.41 637,295.41
Total 8,109,541.64 34,885,556.60 42,995,098.24

* Retired with effect from 21st Magh 2078
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Shareholders
of
Greenlife Hydropower Limited

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Greenlife Hydropower Limited (the “Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31st Ashad 2080, statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, statement of cash flows, statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effect of matters described in Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at 31st Ashad 2080, and its financial performance, cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

Basis for Qualified Opinion

SCA Assets under Development includes a sum of NPR 252.11 million accounted for based on
interim payment certificates from the contractor. Subsequent to the reporting date, tax invoices of
NPR 91.70 million were obtained on 17t June 2024 and local tax regulation of GON has been
complied with on invoice amount subsequently. Advance for SCA Assets under Developmentincludes
a sum of NPR 108.26 million which has remained outstanding for more than three years on the
reporting date. The recoverability of the amounts was uncertain and possible impairment allowances
have not been provided for.

We conducted our auditin accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAS). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN's Handbook of The Code
of Ethics For Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As disclosed in Note 3.12, the Company has not provided or accounted for employee benefits as
required by Labour Act and Contribution Based Social Security Act. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of these matters.




Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with NFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operation, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

Key Audit Matter

How our Audit addressed the key audit
matter

Assessment of Flood-Induced Damage to Headwork Structures and Camp

During our audit, we became aware of a flood that occurred on 2081 Ashoj 26 after the financial
statements has been signed by the management but before issuance of audit report, which resulted
in the loss of surface headwork and camp. The company has filed for insurance claim and the
company is yet to assess the financial impact of such loss.

Use of IFRIC 12 for Presentation of Financial Statements
{Note 4.11 and 4.12 Of Financial Statements)

Company has presented the work in progress
assets as SCA Assets development in line with
IFRIC-12. Company has also presented
construction revenue and cost as required by
IFRIC-12 and related other standards in the
statement of profit or loss. The presentation of
assets and Income/expenses has material
impact on preparation and presentation of
financial statements

Our approach included, but was not restricted

to the following;:

e Reviewed the correctness and adequacy of
presentation of assets in line with IFRIC-12

e Reviewed the correctness of the amount
presented as construction revenue and
construction cost. '

s Reviewed management judgment
margin on construction period expenses.

for

e Other incidental matters in relation to
damages were reviewed.

e We were satisfied with the use of IFRIC 12
on presentation of financial statements.

Other Information

Company's management is responsible for preparation of other information for the reporting period.
The other information may comprise Information included in the Management report, Report of the
Board of Directors, report of Managing Director but does notinclude the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon in connection with
our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.
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the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial
statements. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063. To the best of our
information and according to explanations given to us and from our examination of the books of
accounts of the Company necessary for the purpose of our audit to the extent for the scope of our
audit, we have not come across cases where the Board of Directors or any employees of the Company
have acted contrary to the provisions of law relating to the accounts or committed any
misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the Company relating to the accounts in the Company.

Regards,

Roshan Dahal

Partner

S.Subedi & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date: 2024-09-04

UDIN: 241004CA00628KVUDm
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GREENLIFE HYDROFPOWER LIMITED
Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 Asadh 2080

Particulars Note 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 4.1 5,887,656.34 22,298,687.12
Intangible Assets
SCA Assets Under Development 42 7,605,891,934 .45 6,461,309,289.50
Other Intangible Assets - -
Advances for SCA Assets Under Development 43 362,722,350.69 374,543,679.73
Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets 44 2,602,500.00 2,611,278.08
Other Assets 4.5 - -
Total Non Current Assets © 7,977,104,441.48 6,860,762,934.43
Current Assets
Inventories - -
Financial Assets
Trade Receivables - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 4.6 6,289,390.64 5,421,989.12
Other Financial Assets 44 - -
Other Assets 4.5 8,369,912.21 8,154 438.64
Current Tax Assets (Net) - -
Total Current Assets 14,659,302.85 13,576,427.76
Total Assets 7,991,763,744.33 6,874,339,362.19
Liabilities and Equity
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 47 5,322,583,871.83 4,637,712,343.35
Other Financial Liabilities 4.8 58,052,878.92 45,500,203.15
Lease Liability 3,452,330.73 4,117,163.27
Other Liabilities 154,710,260.22 124,264,589.22
Total Non Current Liabilities 5,538,799,341.70 4,811,594,298.99
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Loans and Borrowings 47 687,948,745.30 | 434,402,324.26
Trade Payables - -
Other Financial Liabilities 48 309,670,614.82 159,467,607.72
Total Current Liabilities 997,619,360.12 593,869,931.98
Total Liabilities 6,536,418,701.82 5,405,464,230.97
Equity
Equity Share Capital 49 1,800,000,000.00 1,800,000,000.00
Retained Earnings and Reserves 4.10 (344,654,957.49) (331,124,868.78)
Total Equity 1,455,345,042.51 1,468,875,131.22
Total Liabilities and Equity 7,991,763,744.33 6,874,339,362.19
Net Worth per Share 80.85 81.60
Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment 4.15 353,022,250.61 446,803,794.83
Company Information and Significant Accounting Policies 1-3
As per our attached report of even
.

i T €€ nhfe g

Hydro Powear Ltd o

Tseten Wangyal K. Lama
Director

Bhushan Thapa
Director

Gobinda Paudel
Director

ulil Shrestha
Accountant
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended on 31 Asadh 2080

VIR ES A A R

s

Particulars

Note

2079-80

2078-79

Income
Revenue from Operations
-Sales Revenue
Construction Revenue as per IFRIC-12
Cost of Sales
Generation Expenses
Construction Cost as per IFRIC-12

4.11
4.11

4.12
4.12

1,144,582,644.95

1,144,582,644.95

567,765,728.76

567,765,728.76

Gross Profit

Other Income
Administrative Expenses
Damaged Items Written Off

4.13
4.14

13,089,451.80

9,023,264.39
206,637,852.75

Profit from Operations

(13,089,451.80)

(215,661,117.13)

Finance Income
Finance Cost

440,636.91

507,756.98

Profit before Tax

(13,530,088.71)

(216,168,874.11)

Income Tax Expenses
Current Tax
Deferred Tax

Profit for the Year

(13,530,088.71)

(216,168,874.11)

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that are Reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss
Items that are Not Reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss

Tax Relating to OCI items

Total Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income

(13,530,088.71)

(216,168,874.11)

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS

(0.75)

(12.01)

Diluted EPS

(0.75)

(12.01)

Company Information and Significant Accounting Policies

BIGES

sang Dikee Lama g ree n l |fe1 gchen Doma Lama

Managing Director Hydro Power Ltd Cha rman

(

Chartered Accountants

e ¢ Lama Tseten Wangyal K. Lama Bhushan Thapa
ecfor Director Director
Gobinda Paudel
Director
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED

Statement of Cash Flow

For the year ended on 31 Asadh 2080

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

16,131,116.68

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit Before Tax (13,530,088.71) (216,168,874.11)
Adjustment for:

13,372,102.86

Disposal of SCA Assets Under Development
(Addition) of Advances for SCA Assets Under Development

11,821,329.04

Fixec Assets Damaged written off - 6,454,914.80
SCA Assets Under Development Damaged written off - 200,182,937.95
Finance Cost on Lease 440,636.91 507,756.98
Changes in Operating Capital

(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Assets 8,778.08 5,774,704 87
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (215,473.57) (6,199,426.69)
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 162,755,682.87 37,537,561.52
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 30,445,671.00 124,264,589.22
Payment of Bonus - -
Payment of Income Tax - -
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 196,036,323.26 165,726,267.40
Cash Flow from Investing Activities

(Addition) of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets - (7,522,356.93)
Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets : - -
(Addition) of SCA Assets Under Development (1,144,302,730.85) (767,668,752.60)

(36,541,117.79)

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities (1,132,481,401.81) (811,732,227.32)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Issue of Share Capital - -
Payment of Dividend - -
Increase/(Decrease) in Lease Liabilities (664,832.54) (540,909.66)
Finance Cost on Lease (440,636.91) (507,756.98)
Increase/(Decrease) in Loans and Borrowings 938,417,949.52 648,805,707.62
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities 937,312,480.07 647,757,040.98
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 867,401.52 1,751,081.06
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period 5,421,989.12 3,670,908.06
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period 6,289,390.64 5,421,989.12
Represented by:

Cash in Hand - -
Balance with Bank 6,289,390.64 5,421,989.12
Total 6,289,390.64 5,421,989.12

Managing Director L2, Chairmpin

.
Kesang Dikee Lama g n' lf&h en Doma Lama
Hydro Powsr rrr:F

enzi/)Anpe\Lama
irgctol Director

Gobinda Paudel
Director
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Tseten Wangyal K. Lama

Chartered Accountants

Bhushan Thapa
Director
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s

GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended on 31 Asadh 2080

Particulars Equity Share Capital| Retained Earnings Reserve Total

As at 31 Ashad 2078 1,800,000,000.00 (113,528,251.22) - 1,686,471,748.78
Restatement C-
Adjustment of First Time Accounting of Lease (1,427,743 .45) (1,427,743 .45)
Restated Balance at 01 Shrawan 2078 1,800,000,000.00 (114,955,994.67) - 1,685,044,005.33
Profit for the Year (216,168,874.11) (216,168,874.11)
Other Comprehensive Income -
Issue of Shares -
Costs of Share Issue -
Dividend Paid -
Balance at 32 Ashad 2079 1,800,000,000.00 (331,124,868.78) - 1,468,875,131.22
Profit for the Year (13,530,088.71) (13,530,088.71)
Other Comprehensive Income -
Issue of Shares -
Costs of Share Issue -
Dividend Paid -
Balance at 31 Ashad 2080 1,800,000,000.00 (344,654,957.49)

Kesang Dikee Lama
Managing Director

Gobinda Paudel
Director

Tseten Wangyal K. Lama
Director

--‘f 3y
S. Subedi & Associales
Chartered Accountants

Bhushan Thapa
Directg

" Junil Shrestha
Accountant
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Financial Year: 2079-80
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 : Corporate Information

Greenlife Hydropower Limited (the Company) is a limited liability company domiciled in Nepal and
established under the Companies Act, 2063 on Ashwin 04, 2066 with the principal objective to generate
and sell hydro-power electricity. Its registered office is located at Kathmandu Metropolitan City-28,
Kathmandu District of Nepal. The company obtained power generation license of Khani Khola-1 Hydro-
electricity Project with installed capacity of 25 MW from Department of Electricity Development
(DoED) on Baisakh 28, 2068, which was subsequently raised to 40 MW as per the amendment to the
power generation license issued by Department of Electricity Development (DoED) on Ashadh 10,
2071. The Company has entered into a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Nepal Electricity
Authority (NEA) on Ashwin 24, 2067. The project is Run of River (ROR) type. The project is under
construction and is yet to commence its commercial operation. The revised required commercial
operation date (RCOD) of the Project is 9th Bhadra 2080. The Company has already started the process
for obtaining the extension of the RCOD.

The accompanied Financial Statements are authorized for issued by the Board of Directors of the
Company in its meeting held on 17th July 2024. The Board of Directors acknowledge the responsibility
for the preparation of the Financial Statements. These Financial Statements are presented to the Annual
General Meeting of the Shareholders for approval.

Note 2 : Basis of Preparation and Measurement
2.1 Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS)
except otherwise stated hereinafter.
The Financial Statements include the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flow, Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes to
Financial Statements including comparatives for the previous year.

2.2 Basis of Preparation
The Financial Statements are prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are
applied consistently to all the periods presented in the Financial Statements except restatement of items
explicitly mentioned hereinafter.
Statement of Financial Position is prepared segregating Current and Non-Current items in reverse order
of liquidity; Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income is prepared on Functional
Basis; Statement of Cash Flow is prepared using Indirect Method and on Cash Basis.

2.3  Functional and Reporting Currency
The functional and reporting currency is the Nepalese Rupees.

2.4  Basis of Measurement
The items of Financial Statements are measured at Historical Cost exc:;ﬂcitly mentioned

otherwise. :
. -
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Financial Year: 2079-80
Notes to Financial Statements

25 Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standard
(NFRS) requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires
Management to exercise judgments in the process of applying the Company’s Accouhting Policies. The
Company makes certain estimates and assumptions rcgarding the future events. Estimates and
judgments are continuously evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future,
actual results may difter from estimates and assumptions. Major estimates includes:

Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment:

Management reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment at least once a
year. Such life is dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the assets and also their
likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and
operating costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information
available to the Management.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and SCA Assets under Development

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its Property, Plant
and Equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of the discounted
estimated future cash flows. This involves Management estimates on anticipated commodity prices,
market demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other factors. Any
subsequent changes to the cash flows due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact the
carrying value of assets.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

Significant Management judgment is required to determine the amount of Deferred Tax Assets that can
be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with tax
concessions available to the Company. The Company has based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the Financial Statements are prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising beyond the control ot the Company.

Note 3 : Significant Accounting Policies
The principal Accounting Policies are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied
since previous periods except otherwise stated. The deviation from previous practices have been
disclosed in the relevant points/paragraphs.

3.1 Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Other Intangible Assets are recorded at cost. Cost includes
the purchase price and directly attributable costs. PPE are presented at cost less accumulated
depreciation in the Financial Statements. Leasehold improvements havezrﬁl’uded in Furniture and

enllf%’"/
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Financial Year: 2079-80
Notes to Financial Statements

Depreciation

Freehold tand is not depreciated. Depreciation on all other assets are provided so as to write-off the
carrying value over the life of the assets.

Depreciation is calculated under the Straight Line Method. The estimated useful lifes are as follows:

Computer, Accessories and Oftice Equipments 7 years
Furniture, Fixture and Fittings 10 years
Vehicles 15 years
Other Site Assets 6 years
Amortization

Amortization on Other Intangible Assets (except SCA Assets) are done based on the useful life, if
available, or on ten years using the Straight Line Basis.

Impairment

Impairment test of PPE and other Intangible Assets is done on annual basis and if there exists indicators
that such assets are impaired, then the carrying value of the Fixed Assets is adjusted and the resultant
impairment is accounted as expenses.

3.2 SCA Assets Under Development
[FRIC 12 — Service Concession Arrangements (SCA) applies to Public-to-Private service concession
arrangements if:
(a) The Grantor controls or regulates what services the Operator must provide with the infrastructure, to
whom it must provide them, and at what prices: and
(b) The Grantor controls through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise any significant residual
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.
Company has determined that [FRIC -12 is applicable to the Company. The Company manages
concession arrangements which include power supply from its hydro power plant. The Company
maintains and services the infrastructure during the concession period. These concession arrangements
set out rights and obligations related to the infrastructure and the services to be provided. The right to
consideration gives rise to an Intangible Asset and accordingly, the Intangible Asset Model is applied.

Revenue from the service concession arrangements under the Intangible Asset Model is recognized in
accordance with the terms of the Power Purchase Agreement as and when the power- is supplied. During
the Construction Phase, revenue is required to be accounted in line with Revenue from Contracts with
Customers which requires accounting of increase in SCA Assets at cost and such cost plus reasonable
margin on construction as revenue. However, due to lack of harmonization on the margin on
construction contracts, Company has presented the amount equal to cost as revenue during Construction
Phase. This also holds true as the Company is only managing the Project and does not sell it, rather the
Company transfers it to the Grantor on Re. 1 at the end of the PPA period.

Administrative costs and indirect overheads are not included as part of SCA Assets as these are not
directly attributable to any of the assets.

Capitalization
When the SCA Assets under Development are available for commercial production, then on such date,
the SCA Assets under Development will be transferred to SCA Assets.

e
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Financial Year: 2079-80
Notes to Financial Statements

Amortization
SCA Assets are amortized over the period of concession, which is generally the period of PPA. The
amortization is carried out using the Straight Line Method.

Impairment
Impairment test of SCA Assets is done on annual basis and if there exists indicators that such assets are

impaired, then the carrying value of the assets is adjusted and the resultant impairment is accounted as
expenses.

De-recognition
SCA Assets is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its

future use or disposal or when the contractual rights to such assets expire. Contractual rights expire on
the conclusion of the PPA period.

3.3 Financial Assets
Financial Assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contract embodying the
related financial instruments.
Financial Assets are classified and measured at either amortized cost or fair value.
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost:
If the business objective of the asset is both to hold the asset and receive periodic specified cash flows
(principal or interest or both), then such assets are classitied as Financial Assets at Amortized Cost.

At initial measurement, Financial Assets classified as measured at Amortized Cost are measured at their
cost plus or minus the transaction cost. Subsequent to the initial recognition, Financial Assets at
Amortized Cost are measured using the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts the future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial
instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Financial Assets at Fair Value:

If the Financial Assets do not meet any one of the criteria of the measurement at amortized cost, then
such assets are measured at fair value.

At initial measurement, Financial Assets classified as measured at Fair Value are measured at their cost.
Transaction cost, if any, are included as expenses in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Subsequent to the
initial recognition, the Financial Assets at Fair Value are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value accounted in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Impairment of Financial Assets are measured using the Expected Credit Loss Model on Simplied
Approach Basis. Impairment, if any, is charged as expenses to the Statement of Profit or Loss.
De-recognition

The Company de-recognises a Financial Asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the Financial Assets expire, or it transfers the Financial Asset, and the transfer qualifies for de-
recognition under NFRS 9. On de-recognition of a Financial Asset in its entirety, the ditference between
the carrying amounts measured at the date of de-recognition and the consideration received is
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

< or eenhf
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Financial Year: 2079-80

Notes to Financial Statements

3.4

3.6

3.7

3.8

< I

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and Cash Equivalent are Financial Assets which comprises cash, highly liquid investments and
deposits with financial institutions with maturity period of three months or less and that are subject to
insignificant changes in value over the period.

Prepayments
Amounts paid for upcoming fiscal years are accounted as prepayments.

Deposits

The amounts deposited with the Authorities for availing facilities are accounted and presented as
deposits provided they are refundable when the facilities are no longer used by the Company. These are
carried at undiscounted values as impact of discounting is immaterial.

Inventories

Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of inventories include cost of purchase and expenses
incurred to bring it to its current location and condition. Subsequently, inventories are measured at cost
or net realizable value, whichever is less.

Inventories are valued using the Weighted Average Cost Method. There is no Inventory balance as at 31
Asadh 2080 that needs to be disclosed.

Financial Liabilities

Classification as Debt or Equity

Financial Liabilities and Equity Tnstruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a Financial Liability and
an Equity Instrument.

Financial Liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contract embodying the
related financial instruments.

Financial Liabilities are initially measured at cost, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortized cost, using the Effective Interest Rate Method where the time value of money is
significant. Initial charges paid for the Term Loan was paid long ago and thus the impact of the
effective interest rate for the current period will be immaterial. Accordingly, contrary to the
requirements of NFRS 9, the effective interest rate on the Term Loan is not computed.

For the Financial Liabilities maturing in the short period, the effective interest rate is not used as the
impact is immaterial. ‘

De-recognition of Financial Liability

A Financial Liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same Lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Present Value Accounting of Retention Liability
Retention Liability is measured at the transaction amount without adjustment of present value due to the
uncertainity on the estimated payment dates of such amounts. This is not in line with NFRS.
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Financial Year: 2079-80
Notes to Financial Statements

3.9 Equity Instrument
An Equity Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity Instruments are recorded at the proceeds received. Cost of
issue are directly adjusted to Equity. ‘

3.10 Revenue
Sale of Electricity : Company has the policy to recognize income from sale of electricity on accrual
basis and based on the invoice issued to Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA), subject to confirmation
from NEA. This is the core revenue, that is yet to arise in the company.

Revenue during Construction Phase : Revenue during Construction Phase is accounted as stated in
Note 3.2.

3.11 Expenses

Expenses are accounted under the accrual basis. Expenses during the Construction Phase are accounted
as stated in Note 3.2. '

3.12 Employee Benefits
Salary and allowances are accounted on accrual basis. Employee benefit liabilities like accumulated
leave, gratuity, insurance etc. are not provided/accounted. Related provisions of the Labour Act and the
Contribution based Social Security Act on this matter shall be considered for future application.

3.13  Income Taxes
Accounting for Income Tax is done based on the Taxable Profit for the year determined under the
provisions of the Income Tax Act 2058.
Deferred Tax is accounted whenever there arises a temporary difference on the:tax base and the
carrying amount of the assets/liabilities. As the Company will benefit from tax exemptions and
concessions for a long period of time, Deferred Tax Assets is not computed on the carry forward of
losses.

3.14 Lease
Lease taken (Company as Lessee) is accounted as per NFRS 16 with accounting of Right to Use Assets
and Lease Liability. Right to Use Assets is computed by discounting the future lease payments using the
incremental borrowing rate of the company. Right to Use Assets is included as part of Property, Plant
and Equipment and is depreciated over the lease period. Interest charge on the Lease Liability is
included as Finance Cost. Additional information on Lease is provided in Note 5.6.
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Financial Year: 2079-80
Notes to Financial Statements

3.15 Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s business activities expose it to a variety of risks which may adversely impact the
completion of the Project. The Company’s Board and Senior Management has overall responsibility for
the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management. The Company's risk management
practices are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor the risks and the adherence to the limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and the Company's
activities.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees the policies for managing each of these risks which are
summarized below:-

a. Credit Risk

Credit Risk refers to the risk that a Counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Company. As the Company is under the Construction Phase, its Counterparty
default risk does not exist, apart from the advances provided for the construction works to the
Contractors or Consultants. Company monitors these Parties closely so as to ensure that the Company
obtains the required benefits or works from those Parties.

b. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its
Financial Liabilities. Company has been availing bank financing in the form of term loan and other
loans as required for meeting its obligations till date, including injection of required equity from the
Promoters and Shareholders. This risk will come to play in big effect once the commercial production is
started.

c. Market Risk

Currency Risk

The Company is subject to the risk of changes in foreign currency values that impact the Company’s
import of machineries and equipment for the construction and installation of the Hydropower Plant. The
exposure to foreign currency has been provided in Note 4.15. The Company, till date, has not taken any
measures to mitigate the risk of fluctuations in foreign currency.

Interest Rate Risk
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company’s long-term and short-term debt obligations. Since, the interest rate risk is influenced by
market forces, Company has little role to play for minimizing this risk.

Market Liquidity

The operations of the Company is dependent on the disbursement of loans by the financing Institutions.
However, the shortage of liquidity in the market itself has hampered the progress of the Company as the
Company has been unable to receive the required funds at the required time, thereby resulting in del
in the execution of the works.
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Financial Year: 2079-80
Notes to Financial Statements

3.16  Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s Capital Management, Capital includes the Issued Capital and all
other Equity Reserves attributable to the Equity Holders of the Company. The Company manages its
Capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimize the returns to the
Shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on the Management’s judgement of the
appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. The Company
considers the amount of Capital in proportion to the risk and manages the capital structure in light of the
changes in the economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The Company’s aim is to translate the profitable growth to the superior cash generation through the
efficient capital management. The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure
with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain
future development and growth of its business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to
maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure,

3.17  Fair Value Measurement
Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an assct or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Fair Value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market or in the absence of principal market, the most advantageous market.

The Fair Value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest,

The Company uses Valuation Techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure the fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which Fair Value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
categorized within the Fair Value hierarchy, described as follows: ‘

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) Market Prices in active markets for identical assets or tiabilities

Level 2 — Valuation Techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the Fair Value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation Techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the Fair Value
measurement is unobservable
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements
As at 31 Asadh 2080

SCA Assets Under Development Note 4.2
In line with Note 3.2, SCA Assets Under Development include the following:

Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Project Land 19,905,877.00 19,905,877.00
Civil Construction 1,328,002,904.96 1,231,865,158.64

Contingency/Miscellaneous Expenses
Site Development

Financial Cost

Infrastructure Development

Plant & Machinery

Owners Cost

Project Set-up and Management Cost
General Items

Metal Works

201,926,041.98
41,910,394.58
3,685,725,245.32
643,110,977.72
797,784,248.00
120,761,421.32
134,996,611.78
65,413,850.89
272,345,972.81

163,911,587.75
39,203,164.32
3,044,097,170.18
620,267,827.02
543,691,242.60
120,761,421.32
122,613,360.02
48,653,083.86
260,420,350.54

Transmission Line and Switchyard 235,234,896.92 187,145,555.08
Environment Mitigation 58,773,491.17 58,773,491.17
Total 7,605,891,934.45 6,461,309,289.50
Advances for SCA Assets Under Development Note 4.3

The below mentioned Advances for SCA Assets Under Development are settled on

construction/delivery of the SCA Assets.

Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079

Civil Construction 33,446,596.80 39,641,619.34
Contingency/Miscellaneous 13,681,885.49 16,375,147.61
General Items 274,992.60 168,750.00
Infrastructure Development 44,570,909.36 56,513,127.61
Land 594,000.00 595,620.00
Metal Works 64,567,306.39 50,285,664.39
Plant & Machinery 118,611,588.00 112,063,596.12
Transmission Line and Switchyard 82,388,566.93 94,659,348.25
Vehicle 100,000.00 100,000.00
Project Set-up & Management Cost 3,782,627.23 3,391,810.02
Site Development 703,877.89 748,996.39
Total 362,722,350.69 374,543,679.73
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

As at 31 Asadh 2080

Other Financial Assets Note 4.4

In line with Note 3.3 and Note 3.6, Other Financial Assets include the followirﬁ:

Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079

Non-Current

Deposits

Department of Electricity Development (DoED) : - -

Nepal Electricity Authority (for PPA) 2,550,000.00 2,550,000.00

Transmission Line License - -

Other Deposits 52,500.00 61,278.08

Total Non-Current 2,602,500.00 2,611,278.08

Current

Total Current - -

Total Other Financial Assets 2,602,500.00 2,611,278.08

Other Assets Note 4.5

In line with Note 3.5, Other Assets include the following:

Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079

Non-Current

Total Non-Current - -

Current

Prepayment

Insurance of Power Plant & Employees 7,704,097.14 7,521,113.64

RTS Fees 400,000.00 375,000.00

Bank Guarantee Commission 69,315.07 22,500.00

Advances

Office Rent - 39,325.00

Advance for Share Alotment - -

Other Advances 196,500.00 196,500.00

Total Current 8,369,912.21 8,154,438.64

Total Other Assets 8,369,912.21 8,154,438.64

Cash and Cash Equivalent Note 4.6

In line with Note 3.4, Cash and Cash Equivalent include the following:

Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079

Cash at Bank 6,289,390.64 5,421,989.12

Cash in Hand - -

Total 6,289,390.64 5,421,989.12
7
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements

As at 31 Asadh 2080
Other Financial Liabilities Note 4.8
In line with Note 3.8, Other Financial Liabilities include the following:
Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Non Current .
Retention Payable 58,052,878.92 45,500,203.15
Total Non-Current 58,052,878.92 45,500,203.15
Current
Agency Fee Payable 46,062,767.96 35,940,270.87
Consultancy & Other Payable 32,382,522.57 32,382,522.57
Interest Payable 7,573,591.42 7,573,591.42
Main Contractor Payable 40,325,400.82 33,263,138.46
Other Parties Payable 32,140,333.63 28,478,393.70
Usance LC Payable 119,587,047.85 3,182,400.54
Salary Payable 21,666,148.37 15,303,408.77
TDS Payable 9,664,955.27 3,186,581.41
House Rent TDS Payable 267,846.93 157,299.98
Total Current 309,670,614.82 159,467,607.72
Total Other Financial Liabilities 367,723,493.74 204,967,810.87
Equity Share Capital Note 4.9
In line with Note 3.9, Equity Share Capital includes the following:
Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Authorized Capital
25,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NRs. 100 each 2,500,000,000.00 2,500,000,000.00
Issued Capital
18,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NRs. 100 each 1,800,000,000.00 1,800,000,000.00
Paid Up Capital
18,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NRs. 100 each 1,800,000,000.00 1,800,000,000.00
Total 1,800,000,000.00 1,800,000,000.00
Reconciliation of no. of Shares
Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Opening 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00
Addition - -
Closing 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00
Retained Earnings and Reserves Note 4.10
Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Retained Eamings (344,654,957.49) (331,124,868.78)
Reserves - -
Total (344,654,957.49) (331,124,868.78)

-
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 31 Asadh 2080

VIBEIEED

Revenue from Operations Note 4.11
In line with Note 3.10, Revenue includes the following:

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79

Sales Revenue

Construction Revenue as per IFRIC-12 1,144,582,644.95 567,765,728.76
Total 1,144,582,644.95 567,765,728.76
Cost of Sales Note 4.12
In line with Note 3.11 and Note 3.2, Cost of Sales includes the following:

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Generation Expenses

Construction Cost as per IFRIC-12 1,144,582,644.95 567,765,728.76
Total 1,144,582,644.95 567,765,728.76
Administrative Expenses Note 4.13
In line with Note 3.11, 3.12 and 3.14, Administrative Expenses include the following:

Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Advertisement Expenses 91,781.24 124,733.86
AGM Expenses - 195,615.72
Audit Fee Expenses 333,350.00 226,000.00
Bank Charges 38,882.51 38,091.45
Board Meeting Expenses 298,000.00 211,000.00
Communication Expenses 16,690.00 29,394.99
Consultancy Fees 1,472,900.00 1,162,450.00
Depreciation Expenses 1,046,211.56 1,488,077.18
Fine and Penalty Expenses 453,163.46 27,900.00
Fuel Expenses 305,569.04 122,270.01
Meceting Expenses - 33,000.00
Membership Fee Expenses 60,000.00 -
Oftice Expenses 89,402.00 84,836.00
Other Expenses 324,597.69 237,915.84
Postage and Courier Expenses 4,835.00 8,500.00
Printing and Stationery Expenses 91,696.82 51,226.50
Rating Fees 226,000.00 226,000.00
Renewal Expenses 7,500.00 4,512.36
Repair and Maintenance Expenses -  45,426.00
RTS Expenses 775,000.00 725,000.00
Salary Expenses 6,993,000.00 3,560,000.00
Share Related Expenses 361,128.48 329,940.48
Utilities Expenses 99,744.00 91,374.00
Total 13,089,451.80 9,023,264.33
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 31 Asadh 2080

Damaged Items Written Off Note 4.14
Particulars 2079-80 2078-79
Fixec Assets Damaged written off
Ropeway - 2,762,081 .41
Micro Hydro Power House - 3,692,833.39
Sub-Total - 6,454,914.80
SCA Assets Under Development Damaged written
off
Electromechanical Goods - 69,407,432.65
Transformer Goods - 68,589,698.25

Switchyard Goods - 27,181,843.38
Switchyard Construction Cost - 35,003,963.67
Sub-Total - 200,182,937.95
Total - 206,637,852.75

The amounts written off during FY 2078-79 are as per the Technical Assessment Report dated 22nd Poush
2078 and approved at the Board Meeting held on 14th Chaitra 2079. Please refer Note No. 5.5 for

additional information.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments Note 4.15
Particulars 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Capital Commitment under Letter of Credit 159,348,742.15 190,381,445.76
Capital Commitment to Contractor 140,759,116.46 208,507,957.07
Contingent Liabilities 52,914,392.00 47,914,392.00
Total 353,022,250.61 446,803,794.83
Capital Commitment (Letter of Credit) 31.03.2080 32.03.2079

Electromechanical Equipment*

USD 1,102,000.00

USD 1,102,000.00

132 kV Equipment (PH Switchyard & Singati
Substation).

INR 17,850,000.00

AAC Conductors for Transmission Line

INR 12,873,837.50

Electromechanical Equipment Parts

INR 8,828,100.00

*Faulty Electro-Mechanical Equipment Goods have been supplied by Hunan Allonward Hydro-Generating
Equipment Co. Ltd. Company has followed up with the Party for the Replacement of the same and upon
inability to obtain replacement of the same, Company has imported the goods and assigned the instaliation
work to another Contractor for the timely completion of the Project. Company is in the processing of filing a
case against Hunan Allonward Hydro-Generating Equipment Co. Ltd. for breach of Contract and
Cancelling the LC and stopping the balance LC Payment to the Party.

Contingent Liabilities 31.03.2080 32.03.2079

Bank Guarantee provided to NEA for RCOD 24,000,000.00 24,000,000.00
extension

Bank Guarantee for Exim Code 300,000.00 300,000.00

Guarantee issued on behalf of Aravali Infrapower
Limited to NEA to execute the Singati-Lamosangu
Transmission Line

23,614,392.00

23,614,392.00

Laxmi Steels Limited for the purpose of purchase 5,000,000.00 -
of Thermex TMT Steel Bar .
Total 52,914,392.00 47,914,392.08" [
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 31 Asadh 2080
Note 5: Additional Information

5.1 Proposed Dividend
There is no any proposed Dividend of the Company.

5.2 Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair value of Financial Assets and Liabilities of the Company are as follows:

As at 31.03.2080
Particulars Carrying Amount |Fair Value Hierarchy Fair Value

Financial Assets

Other Financial Assets 2,602,500.00 |Level 3 2,602,500.00
Trade Receivables - |Level 3 -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 6,289,390.64 |Level 1 6,289,390.64
Total Financial Assets 8,891,890.64 8,891,890.64
Financial Liabilities

Loans and Borrowings 6,010,532,617.13 |Level 3 6,010,532,617.13
Other Financial Liabilities 367,723,493.74 |Level 3 367,723,493.74
Trade Payables ) - |Level 1 -
Total 6,378,256,110.87 6,378,256,110.87
As at 32.03.2079

Particulars Carrying Amount |Fair Value Hierarchy| . Fair Value

Financial assets

Other Financial Assets 2,611,278.08 [Level 3 2,611,278.08
Trade Receivables - jLevel 3 -
Cash and Cash Equivalent ) 5,421,989.12 [Level 1 5,421,989.12
Total Financial Assets 8,033,267.20 8,033,267.20
Financial Liabilities

Loans and Borrowings 5,072,114,667.61 |Level 3 5,072,114,667.61
Other Financial Liabilities 204,967,810.87 |Level 3 204,967,810.87
Trade Payables - |Level 1 -
Total 5,277,082,478.48 5,277,082,478.48
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 31 Asadh 2080
Note 5: Additional Information

5.3 Works Accounted under SCA Assets Under Development based on Running Bills
Of the total amount under SCA Assets Under Development, a sum of Rs. 252,114,288.87 has been accounted based on
running bills of the Contractor certified by the Company. Tax invoices have not been received by the Company for such
amount. Related tax amounts amounting to Rs. 26,097,345.79 have not been booked for the same.

5.4 Legal Cases

Company has obtained a Stay Order in Company's favour relating to one litigation concerning the Electro Mechanical
Equipment, which is still pending.

5.5 Flood and Insurance Claim
Flood at Hanapu Khola caused damage to the Ropeway, Micro Hydro Powerhouse, Electromechanical Goods,
Transformer, Switchyard Equipment and Area. Subsequent to the Balance Sheet date, Rs. 15,725,000.00 has been
received as compensation from the Insurance Company on 3rd May 2024.

During FY 2078-79, Company has written off the damaged assets from SCA Assets under Development and PPE based
on the Technical Report of Consultant dated 22nd Poush 2078 and approved by the Board on I4th Chaitra 2079. The
insurance compensation amount will be booked in income in FY 2080-81 and new works will be capitalized after the
execution of the works.

5.6 Lease
The future minimum lease payments under the lease is as follows:
Period 31.03.2080 32.03.2079
Within a year 1,153,533.33 1,105,469.44
One year to five years 3,066,476.11 4,220,009.44
After five years - -

5.7 Related Party Disclosure .
Related parties comprise of Key Management Personnel of the company. There are no other related parties.
Key Management Personnel:
i. Board of Directors:

Name Position

Yangchen Doma Lama Chairperson

Bhusan Thapa Director

Tenzin Jampe Lama Director

Tseten Wangyal K. Lama Director

Gobinda Paudel Director-appointed w.e.f 21.10.2078

Ritu Gurung Director-appointed w.e.f 21.10.2078. Retired
w.e.f 24.03.2081

Dharmendra Agrawal Director-retired w.e.f 21.10.2078

Kesang Dikee Lama Managing Director (w.e.f 21.10.2078)

Kesang Dikee Lama was paid a remuneration of Rs. 2,520,000 during the period.
Directors (except Directors appointed from Public Shareholders) of the Company have provided personal guarantee for
availing credit facility by the Company.
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 31 Asadh 2080
Note 5: Additional Information

Directors are paid sitting fees for attending the Board Meetings. Meeting fee is Rs. 10,000 (Gross) per meeting per
member. Total Board Meeting expenses paid to Directors during the year is Rs. 298,000. Travel and Daily Allowances
are paid at the approved rates of the Company during official travel.

The following Directors are employed on salary basis. The Salary and Benefits paid to such Directors during the period

are;
Tenzin Jampe Lama NRs. 2,835,000
Bhushan Thapa NRs. 2,520,000

The outstanding balance of payables to Directors are as follows:

Name of Director Salary Payable Other Payable Total

Tenzin Jampe Lama 8,292,941.60 1,140,380.64 9,433.322.24
Bhusan Thapa 3,971,800.04 3,971,800.04
Dharmendra Agrawal* 588,373.99 588,373.99
Yangchen Doma Lama 32,861,402.56 32,861,402.56
Kesang Dikee Lama 2,031,120.00 637,295.41 2,668,415.41
Total 14,295,861.64 35,227,452.60 49,523,314.24

* Retired with effect from 21st Magh 2078

Total Shares Held by Board Members

Board Members hold the Shares directly as well as through other Investment Companies. Total underlying ownership of

each Board Member in the Company is as follows:

Name of Director Direct Investment Indirect Through Total Shares
Other Entities
Yangchen Doma Lama* 3,718,480 2,514,220 6,232,700
Bhusan Thapa 497,500 - 497,500
Tenzin Jampe Lama* - 30,000 30,000
Tseten Wangyal K. Lama* 176,000 - 176,000
Gobinda Paudel 1,000 - 1,000
Ritu Gurung 10,000 - 10,000
Dharmendra Agrawal 199,000 - 199,000
Kesang Dikee Lama* 644,300 252,500 896,800
Total 5,246,280 2,796,720 8,043,000
*these Directors are from the same family tree.
Other Liabilities
Other Liabilities represent the amounts provided by the Promoters to use
for the Project which shall be converted to Equity Share Capital in future
if the Company issues additional shares.
Name of Promoter Amount
Kesang Dikee Lama 6,235,092.58
Yangchen Doma Lama 144,974, 857.64
Dharmendra Agrawal 3,500,310.00
Total 154,710,260.22
5.8 Weighted Average No. of Shares
Weighted average no. of shares for the purpose of computation of
earning per share (including diluted) are as follows:
FY 2078-79 18,000,000.00
FY 2079-80 18,000,000.00
< 2
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N-D -& ASSOClatES Kathmandu,Nepal
PAN No.: 602548050
Chartered Accountants E-mail- canareshdh@gmal.com

Independent Auditor's Report to the Shareholders
of
Greenlife Hydropower Limited
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Greenlife Hydropower Limited (the “Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31%Ashadh 2081{15" July 2024}, statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of cash flows, statement of changes in
equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effect of matters described in Basis for Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects
the financial position of the Company as at 31"Ashadh 2081 (15" July 2024), and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards {NFRSs).

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1} SCA Assets under Development includes a sum of NPR 21.048 Crores accounted for based on
interim payment certificates from the contractor for which tax invoices were not obtained.

2) Advance for SCA Assets under Development includes a sum of NPR 10.305 Crores which has
remained outstanding for more than three years on the reperting date. The recoverability of
the amount was uncertain and possible impairment allowances have not been provided for,

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing {NSAS). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN's Handbook of The
Code of Ethics For Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 4.13 and Note 4.15 to the financial statements, which describe the
financial impact of two flood events during FY 2078-79 and FY 2080-81.

s In FY 2078-79, a flood at HanapuKhola caused significant damage to the company’s assets,
including the ropeway, micro hydropowerhouse, and other equipment. Compensation of
NPR 15,725,000 was received from the insurance company on 3rd May 2024 and recognized
under Other Income in FY 2080-81.

« In FY 2080-81, a flood at Khani Khola caused damage to the Surface Headworks and
Penstock Area, resulting in a write-off of NPR 26,980,929.59. The company has filed an
insurance claim with Sagarmatha Lumbini Insurance Co. Ltd. for ages, but the ¢laim
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amount has not been received as of the date the financial statements were approved by the
Board.Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements, These matters wereaddressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole and in forming cur opinion thereon and we de not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter How our Aud:t addressed the kev audit matter
Use of IFRIC 12 for Presentation of Financial Statements
(Note 4.11,4.12 and 4.2 of Financial Statements) o

Company has presented the work in progress | Our approach included, but was not restricted tr} !
assets as SCA assets under development in line | the following:

with IFRIC-12. # Reviewed the correctness and adeguacy of
The company recognizes an asset arising from presentation of assets in line with IFRIC-12
service concession arrangement when it has 3 |« Reviewing the Power Purchase Agreement.
right to charge for wuse of concession s Reviewing the Contracts with Contractors.
infrastructure. An intangible asset received 2s |« verification of invoices issued by the

consideration for providing construction services contractors.
in a service concessional arrangement s |4 Reviewed the correctness of the amount i
measured at fair value on initial recogniticn with presented as construction revenue and
reference to the fair value of the services construction cost,

provided. s Other incidental matters in relation to

damages were reviewed.
e We were satisfied with the use of IFRIC 12 on
presentation of financial statements.

Company has also  presented construction
revenue and cost as required by IFRIC-12 and
related other standards in the statement of
profit or loss. The presentation of assets and
Income/expenses has material  impact on
preparation and presentation of financial
statements

' 'Si_gniﬁcant Variance Between Estimated and AEGHPruje:t Costs
(Note 4.2 of Financial Statements) o
The Tetal Project Cost of the 40MW Khani Khola- | Our approach included, but was not restricted to

1 Hydropower Project estimated by the the foilowing:
Company is Rs. 1,125.00 Crores, which includes e Reviewed the budgetary control process and :
the Interest during Construction (IDC) amount of approvals for cost overruns, !
Rs. 515.42 Crores, accounting for 45.82% of the |« verified costs through supporting |
Total Project Cost. As of 31" Asadh 2081, the documentation, including contracts and |
Total Cost of the Project is Rs. 851.16 Crores, invoices,
which includes the Interest during Construction *» Analyzed the reasons for variances and
{IDC) amount of Rs. 444,35 Crores, accounting assessed their validity. i
for 52.20% of the Total Project Cost. e Evaluated the accuracy of financial |
disclosures and compliance with accounting |
standards.
e Reviewing of third-party confirmations and
reports B |
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Other Information

Company’s management is responsible for preparation of other information for the reporting
period. The other information may comprise Information included in the Management report,
Report of the Board of Directors, report of Managing Director but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report therecn. Cur opinion on the financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon in
connection with our audit of the financial statements. Qur responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated, '

As the other information documents are in the process of completion, the management has
provided written representations that final version of the documents will be provided when
available.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with NFRSs, and for such internal control a5 management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operation, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We alsa:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from errar, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,
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# Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are Inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease to continue as a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial
statements. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, the financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2063. To the best of our
information and according to explanations given to us and from our examination of the books of
accounts of the Company necessary for the purpose of our audit, we have not come across cases
where the Board of Directors or any employees of the Company have acted contrary to the
provisions of law relating to the accounts or committed any misappropriation or caused loss or
damage to the Company relating to the accounts in the Company.

Naresh Dhungana .
COP NO: 599

N.D.& Associates
Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 250710CA00730BNvSP
Kathmandu, Nepal

Date: 2082.03.23
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GREENLIFE HY DROPOWER LIMITED
Statement of Profit or Loss and (iher Comprehensive Income
For the year ended on 31 Asadh 2081

liems that are Reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss
Items that are Mot Reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss
Tax Relating 1o OCT ilems

Particulars Mote 2080-81 20¥79-80
Income
Revenue from Operations

Sales Revenue 4.11 - -

Construction Revenue as per IFRIC-12 4.11 60,036,124 64 1,213,257 603 65
Cost of Sales

Generation Expenses 412 - -

Construction Cost as per [FRIC-12 4.12 905,694,457 21 1,144,582 64495
Giross Profit 54,341,667.43 68,674,958.70
Other Income 413 15.725,000.00 -
Admimistrative Expenses 414 22.039,165 84 13085451 B0
Damaged lems Written OfF 4,15 26980929 59 -
Profit from Operations 11,046,572.00 55,585,506.90
Finance Income - .
Finance Cost JE5.841.71 44063691
Prafit before Tax 20,6%0,730.29 55,144,869.99
[ncome Tax Expenses - -

Current Tax - -

Deferred Tax = =
Profit for ihe Year 20,6%0,730.29 £5,144,869.99
Other Comprehensive Income

Taotal Other Comprehensive lncome

Twtal Comprehensive Income 20,690,730.29 55,144.569.99
Earnings Per Share (EP5)

Basic EPS { Annualised) 115 3.06
Diluted EPS (Annualised) .15 3.06

Company Information and Significant Accounting Policies

- a . ”....-r-‘_
Kesang Dikee I.n reenl lf&"r’angchcn Doma Lama

Managing Dirce Hydro pPower Lid. Chairman

Directos

As per our atached report of even dale =

W." Ban -!._.____:‘-L'-.-. \
> | i """-'.'.’I'
CA. Mas Dhlméuh\__ /E)

ND & .ﬁ.ssucmlm.h
Chartered Accountanis

/‘\

Tseten Wangyal K. Lama
Director

Sumil Shrestha
Agcountant
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GREENLIFE HYDROFPOWER LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flow
For the year ended on 31 Asadh 2081

Particulars 20R0-81 2079-80

Cash Flow from Operating Activitics

Profit Before Tax 20,690,730.29 £5,144,869.99
Adjustment for:

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 1,118,479.84 1,046,211 .56
SCA Assels Under Development Damaged written off 26,980,929 .59 -
Finance Cost on Lease 35584171 440,636,951
IFRIC-12 Margin (54,341 667 43) (68,674,958 70)
Changes in Operating Capital

{Increase i Decrease in Other Financial Assets (100, 000.00) 8,778.08
{Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (1,477 884 47) (215473.57)
Increase/i Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (5% 2G4 593 92) 162,755 682 87
Increase/| Decrease) in Other Liabilities 1 696, 500.00 3044567100

Payment of Bonus
Payment of Income Tax

Net Cash Flows from Operaling Activities

(64.371.669.39)

180,951, 418.14

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

i Addition) of Property, Flant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
(Addition) of SCA Assets Under Development

Disposal of SCA Assets Under Development

(1,609.756.56)

931,966,305 98)

3,852,266 83

(1,129,217 825.73)

1182132604

{Addition) of Advances for SCA Assets Under Development

Met Cash Flows from Investing Activities (929,723,795.71) (1,107,396,4%6.69)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Issue of Share Capial - -
[Fayment of Dividend - -
Increase/i Decrease) in Lease Liabilitics (797,691 65) (664,832 54)
Finance Cost on Lease (35584171 (440,63691)
Increase/{Decrease) in Loans and Borrowings 995, 300,683.70 938,417,949 52
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities D94,147,150.34 937.312,480.,07
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 51.685.24 867.401.52
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period 6,259 390,64 5.421,989.12
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the perivd 6,341.075.58 6,289,390.64
Hepresented by:

Cash in Hand - -
Balance with Bank 6,341,075 88 6,289,390 64
Total 6,341,075.88 6,289 390,64

& H—

As per our attache

~eft date

*&m‘.\ e g
Kesang Dikee Lamc l'e e n i Ife ngchen a Lama CA. MWas - z
Managing Director  Lydro Power Lide — coyyieman ND & A.

Chartered Accmﬁanis;/,

Tseten Wangyal K. Lama
Drirector




GHEENLIFE HYDHOPOWER LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity
Faor the year ended on 31 Asadh 2081

Particolars Equity Share Capital| Retained Earnings Heserve Tuotal
Balance at | Shrawan 2079 1.300,000,000.00 {331,124,868.78) - 1 468575,131.22
Changes in Accounting Policies I87.678,557.37 387.678.557.37
Restated Balance at 01 Shrawan 2079 1.800,000,000,00 56,553,688.59 - 1.556.553,688.59
Profit for the Year 55,144 869 99 55,144 B69 99
Other Comprehensive Income s
[ssue of Shares -
Costs of Share lssue .
Dividend Paid -
Balance at 31 Ashad 2080 1,300.000,000.00 111,698, 558.58 - 1.911,698.558 58
Profit for the Year 20,6%90,730.29 20,680,730 29
Oibver Compechensive Income -
Issue of Shares -
Costs of Share lssue -
Dividend Paid -
|Halance at 31 Asadh 2081 1.800,000,000.00 132 389,288,587 - 1,931 .389,2688.87

W

Kesang Dikee Lama

€&

Managing Director g re e n I ife

Hydro Power Ltd.

Ymg;lm%t‘[;m/

Chairman

As per our altached repoft -;ﬂ‘ -

CA. Naresh Difingana, .-
N.D. & Associales
Chartered Accountants

Tseten Wangyva
Director
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Financial Year: 2080-81
Motes to Financial Statemenis

Note | ¢+ Corporate Information

Greenlife Hydropower Limited (the Company) is a limited liability company domiciled in Nepal and
established under the Companies Act, 2063 on Ashwin 04, 2066 with the principal objective to generate
and sell hydro-power electricity. Its registered office is located at Kathmandu Metropolitan Ciry-28,
Kathmandu District of Nepal. The company obtained power generation license of Khani Khola-1 Hydro
electricity Project with installed capacity of 25 MW from Department of Electricity Development
(DoED) on Baisakh 28, 206K, which was subsequently raised to 40 MW as per the amendment o the
power generation license issued by Department of Eleciricity Development (DoED) on Ashadh 10,
2071, The Company has entered into a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Nepal Electricity
Authority (NEA) on Ashwin 24, 2067, The project is Run of River (ROR) type. The project is under
construction and is vet 1o commence its commercial operation. The revised reguired commercial
operation date (RCOD) of the Project is 9th Bhadra 2080, The Company has already started the process
for obtaining the extension of the RCOD.

The accompanied Financial Statements are authorized for issued by the Board of Directors of the
Company in its meeting held on 29h April 2025, The Board of Dircclors acknowledge the
responsibility for the preparation of the Financial Statements. These Financial Statements are presented
1o the Annual General Meeting of the Sharcholders for approval.

Mote 2 : Basis of Preparation and Measurement
11 Statement of Compliance
The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS)
except otherwise stated hereinafier,
The Financial Statements include the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flow, Statement of Changes in Equity and Notes (o
Financial Statements including comparatives for the previous year,

1.1 Basis of Preparation
The Financial Statements are prepared on accrual and going concern basis, The accounting policies are
applied consistently to all the periods presented in the Financial Statements excepl restatement of items
explicitly mentioned hereinafter,
Statement of Financial Position is prepared segregating Current and Non-Current items in reverse order
af liguidity, Statement of Prolit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income is prepared on Functional
Basis; Statement of Cash Flow is prepared using Indirect Method and on Cash Basis.

13 Functional and Reporting Currency
The functional and reporting currency is the Nepalese Rupees.

14 Basis of Measurement
The nems of Financial Statements are measured a1 Historical Cost except explicitly mentioned
otherwise,
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Financial Yewr: 2080-%1

Motes to Financial Statements

1.5

Note 3 :

3l

Criticul Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with Mepal Financial Reporting Standard
{NFRS) requires the use of cerain critical accounting estimates and judgments, It also requires
Management to exercise judgmenis in the process of applying the Company’s Accounting Policies. The
Company makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future events. Estimates and
judgments are continuously evaluated based on histonical experience and other factors, inchuding
expectations of fulure events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances. In the future,
actual results mav differ from estimates and assumptions. Major estimates includes:

Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment:

Management reviews the useful life and residual values of property. plant and equipment at least onee a
year, Such life is dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the assets and also their
likely cconomic life, based on various internal and extemal factors including relative efMficiency and
operating costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information
available 1o the Management.

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and 5CA Assets under Development

Al the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its Property, Plant
and Equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. I any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of the discounted
estimated future cash flows. This invelves Management estimates on anticipated commodity prices,
market demand and supply, economic and regulatery environment, discount rates and other factors. Any
subsequent changes to the cash flows due 1o changes in the above mentioned factors could impact the
carrying value of assets.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

Significant Management judgment is required to determine the amount of Deferred Tax Assets thal can
be recognized. based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with tax
concessions available to the Company. The Company has based its assumptions and estimates on
paramelers available when the Financial Statements are prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumplions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising beyond the control of the Company,

Significant Accounting Policies

The principal Accounting Policies are set out below, These policies have been consistently applied
since previous periods except otherwise stated, The deviation from previous practices have been
disclosed in the relevant points/paragraphs,

Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Other Intangible Assets are recorded at cost. Cost includes
the purchase price and directly attributable costs. PPE are presented at cost less accumulated
depreciation in the Financial Statements. Leasehold improvements have been included in Fumniture and
Fixtures.
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GHREENLIFE HYDROFOWER LIMITED
Financial Year: 2080-81
Motes to Financial Statements

Depreciation
Frechold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on all other assets are provided so as to write-ofT the
carrying value over the life of the assets.

Depreciation is calculated under the Straight Line Method, The estimated useful lifes are as follows:

Computer, Accessories and Office Equipments T years
Furniture, Fixture and Fittings 10 years
Wehicles 15 years
Other Site Assels 6 years

Amaortization

Amortization on (ther Intangible Assets {except SCA Assets) are done based on the wseful life, il
available, or on ten vears using the Straight Line Basis.

Impairment

Impairment test of PPE and other Intangible Assets is done on annual basis and if there exisis indicators
that such assels are impaired, then the carrying value of the Fixed Assets is adjusted and the resultant
impairment is accounted as expenses.

12 SCA Assets Under Development
IFRIC 12 - Service Concession Arrangemenis (SCA) applies 1o Public-to-Private service concession
arrangements if:
{a) The Grantor controls or regulates what services the Operator must provide with the infrastructure, 1o
whom it must provide them, and at what prices: and
(k)] The Grantor contrals through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise any significant residual
interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement,
Company has determined that IFRIC -12 is applicable 1o the Company. The Company manages
concession arrangements which include power supply from its hydro power plant. The Company
maintains and services the infrastructure during the concession period. These concession arrangements
set out rights and obligations related to the infrastructure and the services o be provided. The right 1o
consideration gives rise to an Intangible Asset and accordingly, the Intangible Asset Model is applied.

Revenue from the service concession arrangements under the Intangible Asset Model is recognized in
accordance with the terms of the Power Purchase Agreement as and when the power is supplied. During
the Construction Phase, revenue is required to be accounted in line with Revenue from Contracts with
Customers which requires accounting of increase in SCA Assets at cost and such cost plus reasonable
margin on construction as revenue. Uplo the previous accounting period, Company had presenied the
amount equal to cost as revenue during the Construction Phase. The Company has changed its
accounting policy during the current accounting period and accounted the revenue, using the Percentage
of Completion Method, at Cost plus Margin of 6%, based on Management estimate. Previous period
figures have been restated and cumulative Margin upto the begining of the previous accounting period
have been adjusted to Opening Retained Eamnings. The detailed workings with regards to the impact of
the Revenue and Margin has been provided in Note No. §.3.

Administrative costs and indirect overheads are not included as pan of SCA Assets as these are not
directly attributable to any of the assets.

Capitalization
When the SCA Assets under Development are svailable for commercial production, then on such date,
the SCA Assets under Development will be translerred 1o SCA Assels.
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Financial Year: 2080-81

Motes to Financial Statements

33

Amortization
SCA Assets are amortized over the period of concession, which is generally the peried of PPA. The
amortization s carried out using the Straight Line Method.

Impairment

Impairment test of SCA Assets is done on annual basis and if there exists indicators thal such assets are
impaired, then the carrying value of the assels is adjusted and the resultant impairment is accounted as
expenses.

De-recognition

SCA Assels is derccognized on disposal or when no fulure economic benefils are expected from its
future use or disposal or when the contractual rights to such assets expire. Contractual rights expire on
the conclusion of the PPA period.

Financial Assels

Financial Assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contract embodying the
related financial instruments.

Financial Assets are classified and measured at either amortized cost or fair value.

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost:

If the business objective of the asset is both to hold the asset and receive periodic specified cash Mows
{principal or interest or both), then such assets are classified as Financial Assets at Amortized Cost,

At initial measurement, Financial Assets classified as measured at Amortized Cost are measured at their
cost plus or minus the transaction cosl. Subsequent 1o the initial recogmition, Financial Assets at
Amortized Cost are measured using the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts the future cash receipts or payments through the expecied life of the financial
instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period,

Financial Assets at Fair Value:

If the Financial Assets do not meet any one of the criteria of the measurement at amortized cost, then
such assets are measured at fair value.

At initial measurement, Financial Assets clazsified as measured at Fair Value are measured at their cost,
Transaction cost, if any, arc included as cxpenses in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Subsequent to the
initial recognition, the Financial Assets at Fair Value are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value accounted in the Statement of Profit or Loss,

Impairment of Financial Assets

Impairment of Financial Assets are measured using the Expected Credit Loss Model on Simplied
Approach Basis. Impairment, if any, is charged as expenses to the Statement of Profit or Loss.
De-recognition

The Company de-recognises a Financial Asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the Financial Assets expire, or it transfers the Financial Asset, and the transfer qualifies for de-
recognition under NFRS 9. On de-recognition of a Financial Asset in its entirety, the difference between
the carrying amounts measured at the date of de-recognition and the consideration received is
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss,
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Financial Year: 2080-81
Motes (o Financial Statements

34  Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and Cash Equivalent are Financial Assets which comprises cash, highly liguid investments and
deposits with financial institutions with maturity period of three months or less and that are subject to
insignificant changes in value over the period.

35 Prepayments
Amounts paid for upcoming fiscal years are accounted as prepayments,

36 Deposits
The amounts deposited with the Authorities for availing facilities are accounted and presented as
deposits provided they are refundable when the facilitics are no longer used by the Company. These are
carried at undiscounted values as impact of discounting is immaterial,

37  Ioventories
Inventories are initially measured atl cost. Cost of inventories include cost of purchase and expenses
incurred 1o bring it 1o its current location and condition. Subsequently, inventories are measured at cost
or net realizable value, whichever is Jess.
Inventories are valued using the Weighted Average Cost Method. There is no Inventory balance as at 31
Asadh 2081 that needs to be disclosed.

18  Financial Liabilities
Classification as Debt or Equity
Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual armangements entered into and the definitions of a Financial Liability and
an Equity Instrument.
Financial Liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contract embedying the
related financial instruments.
Financial Liabilitics are initially measured a1 cost, net of transaction costs, and are subscquently
measured at amonized cost. using the Effective Interest Rate Method where the time value of meney is
significant. Initial charges paid for the Term Loan was paid long ago and thus the impact of the
effective interest rate for the curent period will be immaterial. Accordingly, contrary 1o the
requirements of NFRS 9, the effective interest rate on the Term Loan is not computed.

For the Financial Lizbilitics maturing in the shor period, the effective interest rate is not used as the
impact is immaterial.

De-recognition of Financial Liability

A Financial Liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by another from the same Lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modilication is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profil
or Loss.

Present Value Accounting of Retention Liability
Retention Liability is measured at the transaction amount without adjusiment of present value due to the
uncertainity on the estimated payment dates of such amounts. This is not in line with NFRS,

r
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Equity Instrument

An Equity Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company
alter deducting all of its liabilities. Equity Instruments are recorded at the proceeds received. Cost of
issue are directly adjusted to Equity.

Hevenue

Sale of Electricity : Company has the policy 1o recognize income from sale of electricity on accrual
basis and based on the invoice issued o Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA), subject to confirmation
from NEA. This is the core revenue, that is yet to arise in the company.

Revenue during Construction Phase : Revenue during Construction Phase is accounted as stated in
Note 3.2

Ezpenses
Expenses are accounted under the accrual basis, Expenses during the Construction Phase are accounted
as stated in Note 3.2

Employee Benefits
Salary and allowances are accounted on accrual basis. Employee benefit liabilities like provident Fund,
Gratuity etc. have been provided/accounted.

Income Taxes

Accounting for Income Tax is done based on the Taxable Profit for the year determined under the
provisiens of the Income Tax Act 2058,

Deferred Tax is accounted whenever there arises a temporary difference on the tax base and the
carrying amount of the asseis/liabilities. As the Company will benefit from tlax exemplions and
concessions for a long period of time, Deferred Tax Assets 18 nod computed on the carry forward of
losses.

Lease

Lease taken (Company as Lessee) is accounted as per NFRS 16 with accounting of Right to Use Assets
and Lease Liability. Right to Use Assets 1s computed by discounting the future lease payments using the
incremental borrowing rate of the company. Right to Use Assets is included as part of Property, Plant
and Equipment and is depreciated over the lease period. Interest charge on the Lease Liability is
included as Finance Cost. Additional information on Lease is provided in Note 5.7,
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315  Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company's business activities expose it 10 a variely of risks which may adversely impact the
completion of the Project. The Company's Board and Senior Management has overall responsibility for
the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management. The Company's risk management
practices are established 1o identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company. to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor the risks and the adherence 1o the limits, Risk management policies
and svstems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and the Company's
activities.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees the policies for managing each of these risks which are
summarized below:-

a. Credit Risk

Credit Risk refers to the risk that a Counterparty will default on ils contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss 1o the Company. As the Company is under the Construction Phase, its Counterparty
default risk does not exist, apart from the advances provided for the construction works to the
Contractors or Consultants, Company monitors these Parties closely so as to ensure that the Company
obtains the required benefits or works from those Parties.

b. Liguidity Risk

Liguidity Risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its
Financial Liabilities. Company has been availing bank financing in the form of term loan and other
loans as required for meeting its obligations till date, including injection of required equity from the
Promoters and Shareholders. This risk will come to play in big effect once the commercial production is
started.

c. Market Risk

Currency Risk

The Company is subject 1o the risk of changes in foreign currency values that impact the Company’s
import of machineries and equipment for the construction and installation of the Hydropower Plant. The
exposure 1o foreign currency has been provided in Note 4.16. The Company, till date, has not 1aken any
measures o mitigate the risk of fluctuations in foreign currency,

Interest Rate Risk

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company’s long-term and short-term debt obligations. Since, the interest rate risk is influenced by
market forces, Company has little role to play for minimizing this risk.

Market Liquidity

The operations of the Company is dependent on the dishursement of loans by the financing Institutions,
However, the shortage of liquidity in the market itsell has hampered the progress of the Company as the
Company has been unable to receive the required funds at the required time, thereby resulting in delay
in the execution of the works.
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Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's Capital Management, Capital includes the Issued Capital and all
other Equity Reserves attributable to the Equity Helders of the Company. The Company manages its
Capital so as to safeguard its ability 10 continue as a going concern and 1o optimize the returns to the
Shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on the Management’s judgement of the
appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. The Company
considers the amount of Capital in proportion to the risk and manages the capital structure in light of the
changes in the econemic conditions and the risk charactenstics ol the underlying assets.

The Company’s aim is to translate the profitable growth to the superior cash generation through the
efficient capital management. The Company’s policy is 1o maintain a stable and strong capital structure
with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain
future development and growth of ils business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to
maintain, or if necessary adjust. its capital structure.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The Fair Value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the assel or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market or in the absence of principal market, the most advantageous market.

The Fair Value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

The Company uses Valvation Technigques that are appropriale in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure the fair value, maximizing the wse of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which Fair Value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
categorized within the Fair Value hierarchy, described as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) Market Prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation Techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the Fair Value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation Technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the Fair Value
measurement is unobservable
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED

Notes 1o Financial Statements
As at 31 Asadh 2081

SCA Assets Under Development Note 4.2
In line with Note 3 2, SCA Asseis Under Development include the following:

Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Project Land 19,905,877 00 19,905,877 00
Crvil Construction 1,330,243,257 46 1,328,002,504 9

ComtingencyMiscellancous Expenses
Sute Develepment

Financial Cost

Infrastructure Development

Flant & Machinery

Oramers Cost

271,796,101 16
43,855,090 86
4443 465.304.33
643, 110.977.72
B19.918,250 48
120.761,421.32

201 926,041 98
41,910,394 58
3,685,725,245.32
643,110,977.72
TRT, TE4, 248,00
120,761 421 32

Project Set-up and Management Cost 146 (408,70 .32 134,996,601 78
Ciencral ltems B4, 78277098 65,413, 850,89
Metal Waorks 266,806 676.67 272345972 81
Transmission Line and Switchyard 259,158,471 .19 235,234 896,92
Environment Mitigation 5877349117 5877349117
Sub-Total 8.511,586.391.66 7.605,891,934.45
!IFRIC—JI Margin 510,695,183 50 456,353.516.07
lhu] 9,022,281.575.16 §,062,245,450.52
Advances for SCA Assets Under Development Mote 4.3
The below mentioned Advances for SCA Assets Under Development are settled on construction/delivery of the SCA Assets

Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080

Civil Construction 23,146, 866 &0 33,446,596 80
Conungency/Miscellaneous 15,145 695.55 13,681,883 49
reneral [ems 168,750.00 274952 bid
Infrastructure Development 44,549,209 36 44,570,909 36
Land 594, 000,00 59400000
Metal Works 71,405,048.72 4,567, 306,39
Plant & Machincry 116,610,024 01 118,611 58800
Transmission Line and Switchyard 84,727,431.53 82388 56693
Vehicle 10000000 100,000 04
Project Set-up & Management Cost 1719 180.00 378262723
Site Development T03,877.89 703,877 89
Total 358.870,083.86 361,722 350.69

‘}&l"eenlif
ydro Power .

o
,.:1‘.
— -




GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements
As at 31 Asadh 1081

UIBEIESD

Mher Fioencial Assets Naote 4.4
In Lime with MNote 3.3 and Note 3.6, Other Financial Assets include the following

Farticalars 31.03.2081 31037080
Non-Current

Depeite

Margin Money for Bank Guaraniee issued 10 Nepal Eleciniciry Authonty {for PRPA) 2. 580,000.00 2 550,000.00
Margin Money for Bank Guaraniee issued 10 Department of Customs {for EXIM 15,0040 00 15, 0040.00
Code)

Crther Deposits 137 500 (0 17,500 00
Total Non-Current 2,702, 50000 1,602,500, 00
Current

Tatal Carrent - -
Total Dther Financial Assets 1,701,500.00 1,601 504,00
Other Assets Mate 4.5
In line with Wode 3.3 and Note 3 5, Other Asiets include the following

FParticulars 31032081 31032080
Mon-Currenf

Tatsl Noa-Current - *
Current

Prepayments

Ingurance of Power Plant & Employees $.116,279.75 7,704,097 14
RTS Fees 425,000.00 400,000 00
Bank Guaraniee Commizsion 2193 6%,315.07
Advaaces

Other Advances 196,500 00 196,500 00
Total Current 584700068 §.369.911.21
Total (iher Assets 5 847.0010.68 5,369,911.21
Cash and Cash Equivalent Note 4.6
In line wath Mode 3 4, Cash and Cash Equivalent include the following:

Farticulars 31031081 31.03. 2080

Cash at Bank 634107588 6,289 300 64
Cash in Hand = -
Totsl 634107588 6,269 350,64
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Hydro Pglwer Lid.

g ’4-;?

A

s




§
%
|

A .

GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED

Mates 1o Financizl Statements

As at 31 Asadh 1081

Loans and Borrewings Nute 4.7
Ia line with Note 3 B, Loans and erm\mE include the followng
Particulars 31.03.2081 31032080
Mo Current
Long Term Loan 6,872,382 841 63 5322 581,871 8}
Total Non-Current 6871381, 841.63 5,511.583,571.83
Current
Loans from BanksFinancial Institutions.
Brdge Gapl_.mn 133,450 459 20 546,076,598 30
Demand Laan - 41,871, 74700
Total Current 133.450,45%.20 GE7.948,T45.50 |
Tatal Loan snd Borrewing TS AR 0083 6,0010,532,617.13

Long Term Loans have been sbtained via Consortium Arrangement from ihe following Banks:

Name of Bank/Financial Institution 31031081 31.03.2080

Mepal Invesiment Bank Lid / Nepal Investnacet Mega Bank Lid 254 944 556 28 126,324 896 28
Century Commercial Bank Lid / Prabhu Bank Ltd GORAT9 2R 92 475983 |19 5%
Citizens Bank Intamational Lid 1.076,507,629 30 945,272,948 13
Ciwl Bank Lad. / Hunalayan Bank Lid 619,190,918 47 564 545390 08
Jyeti Bikas Bank Lad. 462,499,290 18 410,654 974 B
Mabnl Bank Lid 933,509,777 64 35636, 147 54
Nepal Bank Lid ARG, 24T 41796 440,968,204 43
Prime Compaercial Bank Lud. 1977004, 810 00 1,105,610,082 04
Siddhartha Bank Lid 353,998,791 26 317,587,948 39
Tatal 6,871,381 54 1.63 5.311,583,871.83

Addditional laformation on Loans

a Company has emered into a Consortiam Loan Agreement with Prime Commercial Bank Lid as the Lead Financial Instiution, The
approved Term Loan Limit o NRs. 5293 986 940 for the 25 MW Project with the interest rate of 1150 % at the end of the reporting
period. The loan 15 avanled agaamst the entire present and futwre carreet and Tixed assets of the Company, power parchase agreement, jomt
and personal guaraniee of 8 Promoters of Bs. 6,351 6 million for each individual, as well a3 power genevanon heense, pledge of all shares
of Guarantors in the company, progect guaraniee, corporale guarantee, et as detaled in the Supplementary Facilities Agreement dated
September 29, 2023 The mievest on the Term Loan shall be caputalized duning the construction penod or kil the Required Commercial
Operation Date, whachever 15 earhier, subject to appeoval from the Nepal Rastra Bank. The Loan s repayable over a penod of 18 years
alter completion of the construction penoad in 72 qlarterly ballooning installments The Company has already imbated the process 1o
increase the approved Term Loan Ll bo the extent and above of disbursed and capitalized imerest nll date

b. Interest on the Consortiam Loan from Financial Institations il the current penod amounting o Rs. 225 282,167 32 (acorued & due
interest) and Brdge Gap Loan amounting io Rs. 662,066,847 46 have been capitalised and included ia the principal amounis of the
respective Participant Barks above.

¢ The Financial Closure for the adducnal 15 MW has been completed and the approved Term Loan Limit for the same 15 Rs
40,000,000 a1 13% interesi rate. This Loan has not yet been disbarsed o the Company as of 1151 Azadh 2081

d The Loans from Banks have been taken long back and the serace charge on the Loang were not matenal to the Loan amounds, thus
effective imerest rate of the Loans equal its actual inderest rate

W % |
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Motes to Financial Statements
As at 31 Asadh 2081

GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED

IR CIER R ECRIE R

Other Fioencisl Lisbilities MNote 4.8
I line wath Mote 3.8, Other Financial Liabilitnes include the following:

Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080

l

Gratuiry Payable 100,459 24 -
Retention Pavable 62,110,438 62 58,051,878 51
Total Non-Current 63, 111,937.86 S8,052,8748.92
Current

Agency Fee Payable 46,166,338 00 46,062,767 %6
Consultancy & (ther Payable 3238252257 32382522 57
Interest Payable 7,573,591 42 7,573,591 42
Main Contractor Payable 56,729 664,34 40,325 400 82
Other Pamies Payable 19,787, 204.73 32, 140,333.63
Usance LC Payable 5.0014,696 84 119587 047 85
Salary Payable 31 678.74578 21,666,148 37
FF Payable 2A474,160.00 -
TDS Payable 13,233,136.04 3,664 95527
House Rent TDS Payable T6,902.24 267 B46 93
Tatal Corrent 'l-lﬂv:lli.ﬁl.“ 309,670,614.82
Tatal Other Financial Liabilities 308,428 899,82 367,723,493.74
Equity Share Capital Mote 4.9
In line with Mote 3.9, Equity Share Capital includes the following:

Particulars 31032081 31002080
Authonzed Capital

25,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NRs. 100 cach 2,500,000, 000 00 2,500,000,000 00
Issued Capital

18,000,000 Ovdinary Shares of MRs. 100 each 1 B, 00 000 B 1 B0, 00,000 00
Padd Up Capatal

18,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NRs_ 100 each 1800, 000000 (0 1500, 00,000 00
[Total 1B0H0, K00, 04M0, b 1,500, 000,000,044
Reconciliation of no. of Shares

Particulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Dpening 18,000,000 .00 18,000,000.00
Addition - -
Closing 15,0400, 000, 40 18,0040, 000,00
Retained Earnings and Reserves Note 4,10
Farticulars 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Retained Eamings 132,389 288 87 111,698 558 58
Reserves - .
Tatal uzm,:u.ﬂ 111,698 558 58
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 31 Asadh 2081

Hevenue Mrom Operations Naote 4.11
I line with Note 310, Revenue includes the following

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80

Sales Revenwe

Construchen Revenue as per IFRIC-12 { S60,036. 124 64 1,213.257.603 65

Tatal | 960,036,124.64 1,213,257,603.65
Cost of Sales Mute 4.12
In line with Note 3 11 and Nioe 3 2, Cost of Sales ineludes the following

Particulars 2080-81 2079-80
Creneration Expenses

Construction Cost as per IFRIC-12 G5 654,457 2 1,144 582 44 95
Tutul 905,694, 457.21 1,144.582,644.95
(Hher Income Note 4,13
Particulars 208051 2079-80
Proceeds towards Insurance Compensation 15,725,000 0£)

Total 15, 715,000.04

Administrative Expenses Note 4,14
Inline with Mode 3 11, 3 12 and 3 14, Administrative Expenses include the following
|Particulars I080-K1 2079-80
Adverusement Expenses 141,354 77 91,781 24
Audit Fee Expenses 220,350.00 333,350.00
Bank Charges 475000 18 882 51
Board Meeting Expenses 36, 000 00 298 000 00
Communication Expenses T1.918 60 16,690 00
Consultancy Fees 2,734 00000 1472900 0Ky
Deprecaation Expenses 1LIIBATS B4 1,046.211.56
Fine and Peralty Expenses H4E T 5 453 163 46
Fuel Expenses 0386 54 305,569 04
Local Conveyance 3454500 .
Local Tax Expenses 29 500 () -
Membership Fee Expenses . S0,000.00
OiMice Expenses 79,229 99 89,402 00
Oither Expenses 794,425 48 324,597 6%
Postage and Couner Expenses 400,00 483500
Printing and Stationery Expenses 100,245 00 91 696 82
Rating Fees . 226,000 (0
Renewal Expenses 9.578 07 7.500.00
Reparr and Mantenance Expenses 7.350.00 -
RTS Expenses 825000050 775,000 0
Salary Expenses 14,052,593 (4 6,993,000 00
Share Related Expenses SO0, 65000 41,128 48
Unlities Expenses 129,076 (0 95,744 00
Total 12,039, 165.84 13,089 451,80

reenlife
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Nodes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 31 Asadh 2081

UIBEIESD

Damaged lems Written OFT MNote 4.15
Particulars 208081 2079-K0
SCA Assets Under Development Damaged written off
Hydromechamical Gates and Intake Connccting Pipes 1211702215 -
Surface Headworks Construction Cost 14,863 507 44 -
Tatal 20, 950,5919.59 -

The amounis wrilten off during FY 2080-81 are as per the Technical Assessment Report dated 3th Shrawan 2081 and
approved af the Board Meeting held on 24th Shrawan 2081 Please refer Note No. 5.6 for addinonal imfarmation.

Contingent Linbilities and Capital Commitments

Note 4.16

|Particulars

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

[Ceprtal Commitment under Letter of Credit
Capral Commument to Contractor
Contingent Liabilities

154,310,182 50
126,935,177 62
47914 392 00

159,348,742 |5
140,759,116 46
52,914,392 00

Tatal

319,159,752.12

353.022,250.61

Capital Commitment {Letter of Credit)

31.03.2081

31.03.2080

Electromechanical Equipment®

S0 110200000

LIS 1,102 000 00

Electromechanical Equipment Parts

TNR 4,175,000 00

INR 8,828,100.00

*Faulty Electro-Mechanical Equipment Goods have been supplied by Hunan Allonward Hydro-Generating Equipment Co.
Lid. Company has followed up with the Party for the Replacement of the same and upon imability 1o oblain replacement of the
same, Company has imported the goods and assigned the installation work 1o znother Contractar for the umely completion of
the Project. Company 15 m the processing of filing a case aganst Hunan Allonward Hydro-Generating Equipment Co Lid. for
breach of Cortract and Cancelling the LC and stopping the balance LC Payment to the Party

Contingent Liabilities 31.03.2081 J1.03.2080

Bank Guarantee provided to NEA for RCOD extension 24 000,000.00 24, 000 000,00
Bank Guarantee Tor Exim Code 300,000,100 30000, 000 0
Guarantee issued on behall of Araval Infrapower Limited to NEA to 2361439200 2361439200

execule the Singan-Lamasangu Transmission Line

Laxmu Steeks Limited for the purpose of purchase of Thermex TMT Steel - 5,000,000 00
Bar
Total 4791439200 51.914,392.00
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GREENLIFE HYDROFOWER LIMITEDR
Notes to Financial Statemenis
For the year ended on 31 Asadh 2081

Note 5: Additicnal Information

51 Proposed Dividend

There is no any proposed Dividend of the Company

82 Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value of Financial Assets and Lisbahves of the Company are as follows

As at 31,03, 2081

Particulurs Carryving Amount |Fair Value Hierarchy Fair Value
Finuncial Assets
Other Financial Assels 2702500 00 |Level 3 2,702, 50000
Trade Receivables - |Level 3 -
Cash and Cash Equivalen: 6,341.075 88 |Level | 5,341,075 84
Total Financial Assets 9.043,575.88 043,575,588
inancial lities
Loans and Borowings 7,005,833, 30083 |Level 3 7,005,833 300 83
(rher Financial Liabilitees J08 428 B99 B2 |Level 3 JOB A28 859 82
Trade Pavables Level | -
Total 7.314,262,200.65 [ 7,314,262,200,65
As at 31.03.2080
FParticulars Carrying Amount |Fair Value Hierarchy Fair Value
Financial assets
Chber Financial Assets 2,602,500.00 |Level 3 2,602 500 00
Trade Recevables < |Level 3 -
Cash and Cash Eguivalent 6,289,390 64 |Level | 6,289, 39064
Total Financial Assets 8,891,890.64 5,891 89064

Loans and Borrowings 6010532617 13 |Level 3 601053261713
Oither Financial Liabilines 367.723.493 74 |Level 3 367,723,493 74
Trade Payables - JLevel | -

Tutal 6.378,256,110.87 6,378,256,110.87
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
MNotes to Financial Statements
For the year ended on 31 Asadh 2081
Note 5: Additional Information

&3  Change in Accounting Policy with regards to Margin on Construction of SCA Assets under Development as per
IFRIC-12
During the current accounting penied, Company has changed 115 accounting pelicy and accounted the revenue oa
Construction of SCA Assets under Development, using the Percentage of Complenon Method, at Cost plus Marg:n of
6%, based on Management estimate. Previous period figures have been restated and cumulative Margin upto the begiming
of the previous accounting period have been adjusted to Opening Retained Earmings The detailed workings with regards
to the impact of the Revenue and Margin has been provided below

Impact in Statement of Financial Position

Particulars FY 2078-79 Adjustment FY 2078-79 Restated
Previously Reported Amount

SCA Assets under Development 6,461,309 289 50 3BT.6T8557 37 6 B4R 987 846 BT
Retined Earmings (331,124 858 78) 387,678,557 37 56,553 688 59
Hestatement of Retasined Earnings wplo 2078-79

Particluars Amaunt
Costas per IFRIC-12 6,461,309 289 50
Hestated Revenue as per IFRIC-12 6 848 FRT 846 8T
MNet Increment in Retained Earnings 347,678,557.37

Impact in Statement of Profit or Lo

Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80 Upto FY 2078-79
Construction Revenue as per IFRIC-12 based on 60,036,124 64 1,213,257.603 635 6,848 987 845 87
Mew Accounting Policy
Congtgction Revenue as per [FRIC-12 based on G005 694 457 21 1,144 582 624 95 6,461,309 280 50
Previous Accounting Policy
Impact in Profic 54,341,667.43 64,674,958.70 347.678.557.37




GREENLIFE HY DROPOVWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements
Faor ihe year ended on 31 Asadh 2081
Wole 5: Additional Information

54 Works Accounted under SCA Assets Under Development based on Running Bills
Of the total amount under SCA Assets Under Development, a sum of Rs 210,478,201 89 has been accouried based on
runming bills of the Contractor certified by the Company. Tax invoices have not been received by the Company for such
amcunt. Related tax amounts amounting to Rs. 23,471 253,17 have not been booked for the same

55 Legal Cases
Company has obtained a Stay Order in Company’s favour relating to one lingatson concerning the Electra Mechanical
Equipment, which is stll pending

56 Flood and Insursnce Claim

During FY 207879, Flood at Hamapu Khola caused damage to the Ropeway, Micre Hydre Powerhouse,
Electromechanical Goods, Transformer, Swilchyard Equipment and Area. Compensation has been received from the
Insurance Compary on 3rd May 2024 amounting o Rs 15, 725000 00 and the same has been mcluded i Other Income
during FY 2080-81 as shown in Note 4.13

During FY 208081, Flood at Khani Khola caused damage (o the Surface Headworks and Penstock Area The Company
filed claim for damages with Sagarmatha Lumbam Insurance Co Lid Till the date of approval of the Finarcial
Statements by the Board, the claim amount has not been received.

57 Lease
The future minumum lease payments under the bease 15 a8 follows
Perind 31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Within a year 1,216,016 3% 1,153,533 33
e wear 1o five years 1,850,459 72 3, 47611
Afler five vears - .

5B Related Party Disclosure
Related parties compnse of Key Management Personnel of the company  There are no other related parties.
Key Management Personnel:
i. Bowrd of Directors:

MName Position

Yangchen Doma Lama Chairperson

|Bhusan Thapa Dhrector - Retired woe £ 01 06,2081

Tenzin Jampe Lama Durecior

Tseten Wangyal K Lama Director

Gobinda Paude! Drirector = Apponted we 0 21 10 2078
Retired we f 08 12 2081

1R||.u Gurung Durector - Appointed we £ 21 1002078
|Retred wef 24 03 2081

Drawa Taeten Sherpa |Dvirector - Appointed we f 1712 2081

Drharmendra Agrawal Drirector - Retired wef 20102178

Kesang Dikee Lama Managing Director {w e [ 21 10 2078)

Kesang Dikee Lama was pasd a remuncration of Rs. 2 654 000 duning the perssd
[Directors (except Directors appainted from Public Shaseholders) of the Company have provided personal guarantee for
avaling crednt facility by the Company
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GREENLIFE HYDROPOWER LIMITED
Motes to Financial Statements
Faor the yvear ended on 31 Asadh 2081
Note 5: Additional Information

Drectors are paid sitting fees for anending the Board Meetings. Meeting fee 15 Rs. 12,000 {Gross) per mecting for
Charman and Rs. 10,000 (Gross) per meeting for other Board Members. Total Board Meeting expenses paid to Directors
duning the year 15 Rs. 356,000 Travel and Daily Allowances are pawd at the approved rates of the Company duning
official wavel

The following Durectors are employed on salary basis. The Salary and Benefits paid to such Directors during the period
arg;

Tenzin Jampe Lama  NRs. 2,997 000

Bhushan Thapa MRs 2,664,000

The outstanding balance of payables to Direclors are as follows

MName of Director Salary Payable Other Payvable Total

Tenzin Jampe Larna 10,575,021 &0 1,320,380 64 11,855402 24
Bhusan Thapa* 6,040, 760,04 6,040, 75004
Dharmendra Agrawal** 5RE.3I7399 588,373.99
Yangchen Doma Lama 32,861,402 56 32,861,402 56
Kesang Dikes Lama 4,133 484 00 G4, T95 41 477827941
Total 20,749, 265.64 35.414,952.60 56,164,218.24

* Retired with effect from 15t Ashwin 2081
** Retired with effect from 2135t Magh 2078

Tatal Shares Held by Bosrd Members
Board Members hold the Shares directly as well as through cther Investment Companics. Total underlving ownership of
each Board Member in the Company s as follows

MName of Director Direct Investment Indirect Through Total Shares
(nher Entities

Yangchen Doma Lama* 3,718,480 1,008,220 4,726,700
Bhusan Thapa 497 5040 . 497,500
Tenzin Jampe Lama® = - =
Tseten Wangyval K Lama® 176,000 - 176,000
Gobinda Paudel 1,000 . 1,000
Rty Gurung 10,0040 - 10,000
|Dharmendra Agrawal 199,000 - 199,000
[Kesang Dikee Lama® 644,300 52,500 G046, 800
[Tatal 5,246,280 1,060,720 307,000

*these Directors are from the same family tree.

Other Linhilitics

Other Liabilitics represent the amounts provided by the Promoters 1o use
for the Project which shall be converted to Equity Share Capatal in future
if the Company issees additional shares

Mame of Promoter Amount
Rmnﬁ [hkee Lama 7.931,592 58
Yangchen Doma Lama 122,174,857 64
Mohan Agrawal 11,400,000 00
[harmendra A grawal 14,50:0,310.080
Total 156,406, 760,22

59 Weighted Average No. of Shares

Weighted average no. of shares for the purpose of computation of
carming per share (inchsding diluted ) are as follows
FY 2079-80 18,000,000 06 /
FY 2080-81 18,000, (00 00
G
-y
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SCA Assets under Development includes a sum of NPR 431.42 million accounted for based on
interim payment certificates from the contractor. Subsequent to the reporting date, tax invoices of
Rs. 301.99 million were obtained on Ashad 2080 and local tax regulation of GON has been
complied with on invoice amount subsequently. Advance for SCA Assets Under Development
includes a sum of NPR 117.65 million which remained outstanding for more than three years on
the reporting date. The recoverability of the amounts was uncertain and possible impairment
allowances have not been provided for.
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Wﬁm‘r:

SCA Assets under Development includes a sum of NPR 252.11 million accounted for based
on interim payment certificates from the contractor. Subsequent to the reporting date, tax
invoices of NPR 91.70 million were obtained on 17" June 2024 and local tax regulation of
GON has been complied with on invoice amount subsequently. Advance for SCA Assets
under Development includes a sum of NPR 108.26 million which has remained outstanding
for more than three years on the reporting date. The recoverability of the amounts was
uncertain and possible impairment allowances have not been provided for.

Al Iefgd PRI IIRX TS AT TiTwar (e TR Wl TSR TSE:

) HUA PR HEIET B (o7 AT MK IUAeH TSR AT (HTa< qWT
TR AFHR TSI | HFYIeh aratae faaqg feafa giafafea ™ smaaw
I THTITIAHT ATATCAT JTEEHEe A@rgor T |

DEEER, 93-9y o =rftfer wfesrem



) HEAI A Iedad ATvFer Hgile TGN qeaiead qeeedsT < Tqar
TREYNE FARA T WH G T AWM GTeedT 9t 91 Iwper wegde ™
LEGEERICEE | R Cr i

G0 S Stewie T fawita st @,

—ATIT SMEHIE THIH |

(W) AT 6T TR W THT TGP NI J&AT, T V@ A o4, T WA
TET FIART S QAT FFAA TG TP AT @ T q& WA AR
Oufg o7 X feft T8 FFiier T @ @ T9T AT AR WAL 9
@A feat T wg @ faaa,

—a U AR R T |

@ T il AT FEE T IR GEEE FIIRT ST T T 9 AfE
THPT FHT @ fafaar Eee,
—HREH! T oo qiufaer aiiie giqaear S TRl T & HFeiel
TEd® HF] T9TH! |

@) HFA TAT FAAH EEF TR AP AT T TR T FRAREE T
| AT FFIPT HIRETAT AT T AT qIE,
~GeE qrAfaee! qvie JTaeTHT Jeoig T |

@ foa aiiE T FEENE AR AAEAE FRAE Sude TE
TAFQ,
—HTAT NAGAERA &l FATTHRI IqA A |

@) T s T FFIET GE T TR e TEe Qi
T T FET TR FREAT (Aoee G W@dl AT G GHwEdT Meeeate
FEAI JIT BT AFDIL,

—THTHT |

@ frm aflE afm Fein aafaa TRioeen gt g9EE T e
AMFH! TATRS! ATBIT ETEHT TRAT TN TRIGUH THHH! TR,

—THTHT |

@) FFAE AT T AR GRE TR WY A FAE TR @NE TR,
T VIR GEAT T A AT o1 A4 NI GRE TR T FFIter. Jenret
TR G,
—ATH |

@ e AT JuIelt QAT AETET T WO W Qi fawqa faa,
—ge TP | GaTeS qrAtqare fraer e |

@ P offe o & gwEm g<er R,
—AETIOET JiqaaadT Jooi@ Tl |

Q3-q4 & arfiF gt



@  AEEQE gifaer TaERdl AHEN, Moee T TR0 I, Sar a9qr
i, | affas W w9 @R o T | afifae &Y e @ sig
e faa,
—faEEe FE TEEH G |

@) S, T GOeE, U T, FEAET JEedq faeEa ar fee
AFHT TATR AT o7 G WP B, FF AT AT G FFAAE B
T THIST Al ¢ 9 F,
—THTHT |

) HOE®, T W, FUFQ TE A QEFQEeE o e
ireatie, war qur gfaaer @,

Treathas
fa. . LIk ag AqT. 4.
0V /0% 0
9. |7 afera T ST FAEH o ¥ 35,34,000
R |® quor grar =T AS ¥ RY,30,000
ST ATy [k ATHT g qATAR & QY,R0,000
¥3& s
.4, qTH I AT,
0V /050
Q. [HT greEe ST A A ¥ ¥5 000
R, |H ol StE AT SEIECAER ¥ %¥0,000
3[BT Sur e SEIECAER ¥ ¥0,000
Y. | a9 ated 9Tge? oATH] IATAd o ¥ %¥0,000
Y. | ifa= A SRICEIRELS ¥ %0 000
S G S i AR GEAE HEH ¥ 30,000
9. =T s fefe | Jad GATAd ¥ %0 000

DEEE, q3-qy o =i gfqaes



|| Seerew ersgmeR fafres

M  qEEEe R JiP W AT T,
—THTHT |

(®)  TE ¥ W Trfa i ar e Ier g faa,
—TATET |

@)  TE QN THRH T FFA T AP FRADT (a7,
—TANTRT |

() TW AT T TR FOA T G HITPT TRIAGTAT GAST T T B
T

AT |
@) T AP AR |
—TNTT |

90%




(@)

@)

Q)

(%)

®)

S

®)

WAEE eReMmER fafvee
FEAT G 0%3 BT HT Q0% Y FFafvaa
AT, 050/0%q
fafcen T siie faaor

o ader FRERET fHeEEee,
— GOF FAfaeR! alie JaaeTdl Seag Tl |

g T Fiftgy TRRERTETe Feer FIAEETE BT ST TP 7Y 8 I,
— Q! TAT T FFAT! TRATSAT WAATS AP FqL TR |

yiae qar swea fafaae e g Saafer T siremr T 9 e S
YA(F fATqar &I,
— e QHATaeR! qve JiqaedT Sead e |

FAET AENTE T AEAATAS T,
— TS |

Ha® IHREAT TR FTHT T WS 1T,

— FFAIP FIAEA AR TG FFAAT R ST GAAbee @A AqT @Al
FFIAI HEIHIPT TTeT T AT A FaTereh NG T&7 &t foas d=meres (R
ST Aed 9 SR g qAfa ToT TR Ry 1 g R T fafve
frfqaT dermae w9 = qUUT 9T T FEEERO 9 d% Hfwd Wmq Ry T A
M= Teee AT KU T9=1q g=ee qiifa Soed qeTe a9 a® =i am@r
AT AU Fereres qrafaar s e |

FRARATE FGL T [&H FTEE,
— AT |
AT IRIEETTHT F IRFAT S UH AT W1 IR AW afafrer

FIAGT AL, 050|5] B AGIEU J(qaeTHT o€l UR&F Uq. €. e
THIUEE, TS THSrarad #1 f4.T. T gl (e THifwe! dieaq S
T gfae T R

1) SCA Assets under Development includes a sum of NPR 21.048 Crores accounted for

based on interim payment certificates from the contractor for which tax invoices were
not obtained.

2) Advance for SCA Assets under Development includes a sum of NPR 10.305 Crores

which remained outstanding for more than three years on the reporting date. The
recoverability of the amount was uncertain and possible impairment allowances have
not been provided for.
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About the Company

Greenlife Hydropower Limited (the Company) is a limited liability company domiciled in Nepal and
established under the Companies Act, 2063 on Ashwin 04, 2066 with the principal objective to
generate and sell hydro-power electricity. Its registered office is located at Kathmandu Metropolitan
City-28, Kathmandu District of Nepal. The Company obtained the power generation license of Khani
Khola-1 Hydro-electricity Project with installed capacity of 25 MW from Department of Electricity
Development (DoED) on Baisakh 28, 2068, which was subsequently raised to 40 MW as per the
amendment to the power generation license issued by Department of Electricity Development
(DoED) on Ashadh 10, 2071. The Company has entered into a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with

Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) on Ashwin 24, 2067. The project is Run of River (ROR) type.

Salient Features of the Project

Khani Khola-1 Hydropower Project

1 Project Location

Development Region

Central Development Region

Zone

Bagmati

District

Dolakha

Headworks Site

Gaurishankar Rural Municipality, formerly
Marbu VDC

Powerhouse Site

Gaurishankar Rural Municipality, formerly
Marbu VDC

Geographical Co-ordinates

Latitude

27° 47'48"N to 27° 50' 28"N

Longitude

86° 20' 00"E to 86° 22' 00"E

2 General

Name of River

Khani Khola, Napke Khola & Hanapu Khola

Nearest Town

Charikot

Type of Scheme Run-of-River
Gross Head 963m
Installed Capacity 40,000 kw
Average Annual Energy after Outage 227.822 GWh

3 Hydrology

Catchment Area

76 Km? (Inclusive of Napke & Hanapu Khola)

Mean Annual Discharge

6.688 m’/s

Discharge Design

5.10 m*/s (40 % PoE)

Riparian Release

0.15 m*/sec

Design Flood Discharge

193 m®/s (100 Yr. flood)

4 Headworks

Type of Diversion Weir

Broad Crested Concrete Ogee Overflow Weir

Length of Weir

8.0m

Height of Weir

3.0 m (From River Bed)

Crest Elevation

3388 m
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Size of Undersluice Gate

2.00m x2.70 m (1 No.)

Crest Level of Undersluice 3,441.0 m
Intake Type Side Intake Orifice
No. of Openings 2 (Two)
Size of Orifice 2.50m x1.00 m
Sill Level of Intake 3386.50 m
5 Gravel Trap
length of Gravel Trap 8.50m
Size 1.50mx3.4m
6 Approach Canal
Type of Approach Canal RCC Rectangular
Length 11.0m
Size 1.50mx1.75m
Longitudinal Slope 1in 200
7 Desanding Basin
Type Double Chambered, RCC
No. of Chamber 2
Dimension (Lx B) m 75.0 m (Effective) x 7.50 m
Normal Water Level 3387.426 m
Trap Efficiency 90%
Particle Size to be settled >0.15 mm
8 Pipe Inlet/Link Canal
Type Trapezoidal
Length 17.50 m
9 Headrace Tunnel
Type D Shape, Pressure Flow
Support Type Shotcrete & Concrete Lined
Length 1,900 m
Size 2.20m
10 | Surge Tank
Type Conventional, Rectangular RCC
Shape Circular
Diameter 5m
Height 32.20m
Normal Water Level 3382.32m
Up-Surge Level 3395.62 m
Down-Surge Level 3375.04m
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11 | Underground Penstock (Inclined &
Horizontal)
Internal Diameter 1.20m~1.30 m
Length 1470 m
Thickness 12~26 mm
12 | Powerhouse
Type Underground
Size (Lx B x H) 45mx12mx13m
Turbine Axis Level 2425 m
13 | Tailrace Tunnel
Type Inverted D-Shaped
Length 245 m
Size (W x H) 2.20mx2.20 m
Slope 11n 300
14 | Turbine
Type Horizontal Axis Pelton
Number 3 (Three)
Rated Output Capacity per Unit 13750 kW
Efficiency 91%
15 | Governor
Type Electro-hydraulic with PID Control
Adjustment for Speed Droop Between 0 to 5%
16 | Generator
Type Synchronous, Three phase
Rated output capacity per unit 15,686 kVA
Power Factor 0.85
Voltage 11 kv
Frequency 50 Hz.
No. of Units 3 (Three)
Excitation system Brushless or Static
Efficiency 97%
17 | Transformer
Type Single Phase, Oil Immersed
No. of Units 6 + 1 as Spare
Rated capacity of Each Unit 8000 kVA
Voltage Ratio 132/11 kv
Vector Group YNd 11
Efficiency 99%
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Transmission Line to be constructed by
Company

Voltage level 132 kv

Length (approx.) 18.0 km

From Powerhouse

To Singati Sub-station
Conductor "WOLF"
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Headrace Connecting Pipe




A

f

ok

Headrace Connecting Pipe

Descender Basin

Headrace Tunnel
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Ropeway

Powerhouse

Pénstock Pine & Anch-or Bock‘
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Powerhouse

Power House Control System




Powerhouse Switch Yard
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Singati‘—- Receivihg End Switch Yard




Tower After Stringing

Transmission Line
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greenlife

Hydropower Ltd.

Greenlife Hydropower Ltd.
Kamalpokhari, Kathmandu-28

Phone No.: 01- 4511373

Email: nepalgreenlife@gmail.com
Website: greenlifehydropower.com.np



